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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2024 (“FY2024").

The initial recovery of cross-border tourism in early 2023 created
expectations of rapid economic recovery in society. However, despite a
short-term rebound in economic activities after the lifting of the
pandemic control measures, the upward momentum of the economy
has encountered resistance, leading to an atmosphere of uncertainty.
Consumer confidence is still lower than pre-pandemic level which is
attributable to the ongoing inflationary pressure, suppressed consumer
spending and a surge in outbound travel by Hong Kong residents.
Despite the challenging operating environment, the Group has
maintained the stability of its business thanks to the unremitting efforts
of the team. For FY2024, the Group’s revenue reached HK$494.3
million, representing a slight increase of 6.7% from revenue of
HK$463.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023").

We have been operating in the high-end medical aesthetic industry
for many years. Our two major treatment brands, CosMax+ and
VITAE, have gained recognition from customers over the years. The
proactive and positive feedbacks from our customers are the best
proof and encouragement for our commitment to providing high
quality products and services. We strongly believe that the solid
foundation of our Group enable us to continue developing in different
economic cycles. However, at the same time, we constantly strive to
improve our current performance. Hence, we continuously review and
adjust our operational strategies so as to actively respond to the
changes and uncertainties in the macro environment. In current year,
we implemented various measures aimed at improving operational
efficiency to further enhance our competitiveness. We also introduced
diversified new services to expand our customer coverage and
enhance their experience.

The skincare product retail market in Chinese Mainland and Hong
Kong is becoming increasingly competitive. Customers are being
more cautious in terms of their spending amounts and consumption
pattern. The Group constantly reviews the distribution and location of
its retail network. We optimized our sales network in Hong Kong in
FY2024. In Chinese Mainland, we leverage distributors’ sales
network to reach a wide customer coverage. We have also upgraded
our customer relationship management (“CRM”) system and reformed
our membership program to support new marketing strategies.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EFERESE

XOVE sales in both Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland met our
expectations. However, due to the nascent stage of our business in
Chinese Mainland, marketing expenses for brand building and
increasing awareness are relatively high. In the current uncertain
macroeconomic environment and pro-longed recovery period, we
anticipated that XOVE may require more time to enter the harvest
period.

In FY2024, primarily due to increased expenses in Chinese Mainland,
the Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$12.6 million
(FY2023: net loss of HK$20.5 million). The decrease in net loss was
mainly due to the management’s quick response to the changing
economic situation and the effective implementation of various
measures to promote sales and control costs. Besides, the Group
maintains a sound financial position with strong cashflow and a low
debt ratio.

As always, we remain dedicated to upholding our core values of
professionalism and safety, ensuring the provision of high quality
services and products to our customers. Our team, equipped with
expertise and extensive experiences, is one of the most valuable assets
of our Group. The solid foundation established over the years is
fundamental to the long term sustainable development of our Group.

From long term perspective, we maintain an optimistic and positive
outlook on the medical aesthetic industry. However, we will adopt a
cautious and prudent approach in formulating the Group’s mid-term
objectives and strategies. We will closely monitor the economic
situation and changes and will make timely and appropriate
adjustments when necessary to maintain our competitive advantage
and create greater value and returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, business partners, suppliers, and customers for
their unwavering support. | also extend my heartfelt appreciation to
our management and the team for their dedication and contribution
over the past years.

LAI Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

mfiﬁnjnﬂﬂ& *ﬁ

Business Review and Outlook

The Group is principally engaged in the non-surgical medical aesthetic
and wellness beauty industry in Hong Kong and the sale of skincare
products in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the Group has pro-actively responded
to the relatively challenging market environment. Due to intensified
competition, we have spent more effort and resources in advertising
and promotion and upgraded our CRM, aiming to enhance our core
competitiveness in the medical aesthetic, wellness beauty and
skincare industry. We also recognize the crucial importance of
maintaining customer loyalty for the Group’s long term development.
Moreover, in order to further enhance operation efficiency, we have
implemented various measures, including optimization of the sales
network and resources allocation, as well as streamlining operational
structure and business process through process re-engineering.

For FY2024, the Group reported a revenue amounted to HK$494.3
million, representing a slight increase of 6.7% from revenue of
HK$463.1 million for FY2023. The increase was primarily driven by
the growth in revenue from our treatment services. However, the
Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$12.6 million (FY2023:
net loss of HK$20.5 million). The loss was mainly due to the increased
marketing and other expenses in Chinese Mainland.

The Group’s three CosMax+ medical aesthetic centres are all located
in prime locations in Hong Kong, which helps to attract and establish
a diverse customer base. All devices and treatment services undergo
clinical evaluation by doctors before adoption to ensure the provision
of safe and high-quality customized treatment services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)

The Group also operates three VITAE treatment centres in prime
locations in Hong Kong. The VITAE brand, specializing in wellness
beauty, embraces the service concept of “maintaining the perfect
balance of beauty and health, radiating beauty from within”. Since its
establishment, VITAE has met expectations in terms of customer
base and revenue. With the market’s high recognition of VITAE’s
services, we anticipate that VITAE will make a positive contribution to
our Group’s operations and finances in the medium to long term.

In response to the growing demand for beauty treatments, both
CosMax+ and VITAE has actively introduced diversified treatments to
provide more comprehensive services and meet the needs of different
customers, thereby enhancing brand awareness and customer
loyalty.

Furthermore, both CosMax+ and VITAE have been awarded the
“Quality Service Recognition”, fully demonstrating the Group’s
outstanding achievements in the quality of medical aesthetic and
wellness beauty services.

XOVE is a premium skincare product brand developed by a team of
Swiss skincare experts. In FY2024, we have consolidated our Hong
Kong sales network. We also promoted and sold our products
through our eShop. Despite lower consumer confidence and changes
in overall spending patterns compared to pre-pandemic times, our
sales maintained stable thanks to the support of our loyal customers.
We organized various customer workshops and campaigns to
strengthen and consolidate our customer relationship.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Business Review and Outlook (Continued)

XOVE leveraged on our distributors’ sales network to reach a wide
customer coverage in the Chinese Mainland and also sold our
products on various online platforms like Tmall and Douyin and the
sales performance of all channels met the expectations. However, as
the business in Chinese Mainland is in its early stages, we need to
incur higher advertising and promotional expenses. Given the
challenging environment in recent years, we anticipated that XOVE
may require a longer than expected time to reach the harvest stage.

In response to the changing economic environment and to enhance
our brand image and attract new customers, we have upgraded our
CRM system and reformed our membership program to support new
marketing strategies. The Group also organized various advertising
and promotional activities during FY2024.

Social responsibilities are always one of our commitments, the Group
has, for the consecutive third year, participated in the “Pink
Revolution” campaign organized by the Cancer Fund.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
and wellness beauty services, which include treatment services,
prescription and dispensing of medical products. In addition, we also
sell skincare products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$494.3 million
for FY2024, representing an increase of approximately HK$31.2
million or 6.7% as compared with HK$463.1 million for FY2023.
During FY2024, our Group operated 6 treatment centres and retail
stores in the first-tier shopping malls for the sale of skincare products.
The effective implementation of our sales and marketing activities
increased the public awareness for our brands, thus total revenue
increased as compared to last year.
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For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ASIBLEE

2024 2023

HK$’000 % HK$’'000 %

FExT B FAET BoOt

Treatment services BERERS 374,538 75.8 333,213 72.0

Skincare products EEEM 119,641 24.2 129,573 28.0

Medical consultation services BEZARS 9 0.0 9 0.0
Prescription and dispensing B EME R ML %

of medical products 72 0.0 322 0.0

Total revenue Fal g 494,260 100.0 463,117 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(1)

(iii)

Revenue from treatment services

Revenue from treatment services amounted to approximately
HK$374.5 million for FY2024 and approximately HK$333.2
million for FY2023, representing 75.8% and 72.0% of our total
revenue, respectively. The increase of approximately HK$41.3
million or 12.4% was primarily due to (1) introduction of new
treatment services; (2) steady growth of our customer base
and; (3) the implementation of effective sales and marketing
activities which increased the awareness of the brands.

Revenue from sale of skincare products

Skincare products represents series of products include
cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser, eye care products,
ultraviolet (UV) protection products and masks, etc., which
backed up by a team of Swiss skincare experts.

Revenue from sale of skincare products amounted to
approximately HK$119.6 million for FY2024 and approximately
HK$129.6 million for FY2023, representing 24.2% and 28.0%
of our total revenue, respectively. The decrease of
approximately HK$10.0 million, or 7.7%, was primarily due to
the tightening of the retail market for FY2024.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend skincare products which are sold at our medical
aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to approximately HK$0.1 million for FY2024 and
approximately HK$0.3 million for FY2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)

Other income and gain, net

Other income and gain, net amounted to approximately HK$5.8
million for FY2024 and HK$9.4 million for FY2023. The decrease of
approximately HK$3.6 million or 38.3% was primarily due to the
exclusion of the non-recurring government subsidies received in
relation to Employment Support Scheme and other subsidy scheme
under the anti-epidemic fund of approximately HK$6.7 million in
FY2023.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$52.8 million for FY2024 and HK$47.4 million for FY2023. The
increase of approximately HK$5.4 million or 11.4% was primarily due
to increase in revenue during FY2024.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$6.3 million, or 3.5%, from
approximately HK$177.5 million for FY2023 to approximately
HK$183.8 million for FY2024. The increase in staff costs during
FY2024 was mainly attributable to the increase in number of staff and
commission paid to front-line staff whose incentive scheme tied to
various key performance indicators such as number of treatment
conducted and number of package sold.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets decreased by approximately HK$2.1 million, or 3.0%,
from approximately HK$70.0 million for FY2023 to HK$67.9 million
for FY2024. The decrease was primarily due to the optimization of our
Hong Kong sales network.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation in relation to property, plant and equipment decreased
by approximately HK$2.0 million, or 4.5%, from approximately
HK$44.4 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$42.4 million for
FY2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses, net

Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses, net during the
FY2024 and FY2023:

B 7% B B8 (4)
HMp X 38
2024 B B JE K 2023 B B 4F & M HAth F SO0F
RERAAEH 0T

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
FET FAT EOLE

Credit card commission ERRAE 14,431 15,722 (8.2%)

Advertising and promotion expenses & & M HEE R 65,346 62,229 5.0%

Repair and maintenance fees BERRESE 4,795 4,740 1.2%

Professional fees EXEH 9,069 7,947 14.1%

Charitable donations BERX 433 129 235.7%

Consultancy fees =1k = 16,533 18,723 (11.7%)
Impairment of property, Y - BB RERERIE

plant and equipment 1,430 - N/A

Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,170 - N/A

Others EHfh 46,419 43,981 5.5%

159,626 153,471 4.0%

Other expenses, net increased by approximately HK$6.1 million from
approximately HK$153.5 million for FY2023 to approximately
HK$159.6 million for FY2024. The increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in expenses in Chinese Mainland for FY2024, especially
advertising and promotion expenses for brand building and raising the
awareness of the brands. Besides, the Group recognized impairment
loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$1.4 million and 1.2 million respectively for FY2024.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$1.5 million from
approximately HK$3.7 million for FY2023 to approximately HK$5.2
million for FY2024.

Income tax

Income tax credit amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million for
FY2023 and income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$0.8
million for FY2024.

Loss for the year
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$12.6 million for FY2024 (FY2023: HK$20.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Dividend

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for FY2024 (FY2023: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Indebtedness
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a stable financial position with cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$119.8 million as at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$116.9 million). Our working capital, excluding those lease
liabilities relating to properties leased for own use, was HK$40.3
million as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$31.2 million). With our steady
cash inflow from operations, coupled with cash and bank balances,
we have adequate liquidity and financial resources to meet the
working requirements in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2024, most of our cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United State Dollar and Renminbi.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2024, our Group had approximately HK$12.5 million
outstanding interest-bearing bank borrowings (2023: HK$19.2
million).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2024, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2023: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2024, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of approximately HK$62.6 million
(2023: approximately HK$62.4 million) pledged for credit card and
bank facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings divided
by total share capital and reserves, was approximately 9.1% as at 31
March 2024 (2023: 12.7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Indebtedness
(Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and most of
its transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during FY2024 and FY2023. The Group will closely monitor
related risk in the future.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during FY2024, nor were there any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the reporting period. Save as disclosed in this report, there is
no plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has a total of 324 employees (2023:
314). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group
were approximately HK$183.8 million for FY2024 (FY2023:
approximately HK$177.5 million). Remuneration is determined with
reference to various factors such as comparable market salaries and
work performance, time commitment and responsibilities of each
individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house and/or
external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary, year-
end bonuses are offered to employees who performed outstandingly
to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Prospects

Looking forward, economic growth is expected to maintain a sluggish
upward trajectory, with interest rates remaining high caused by the sticky
inflation. Consumer confidence and spending may remain relatively
subdued. To respond to the slow and prolonged recovery period, the
Group will focus on optimizing operational strategies to achieve long-
term sustainability. Resources will be prioritized to our core business with
competitive advantages to strengthen our competitiveness.

The Group will continue to identify, develop and introduce new
products and services to enrich customer experience. Ongoing
training will be provided to our staff not only to promote
professionalism and safety, but also to ensure a high service
standard. These measures would benefit the Group in attracting new
customers and further strengthening the loyalty of our existing
customers.

In the long term, we remain optimistic about medical aesthetic and
wellness beauty industry. However, we will employ cautious and
prudent steps in setting the Group’s mid-term objectives and
strategies. We will closely monitor market and economic conditions
and make necessary adjustments to maintain competitiveness.
Besides, the Group maintained a healthy financial position with strong
cashflow and low gearing. We are confident that the Group’s strong
foundation and customer-oriented professionalism would create value
and return to our shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEB2BREFE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (B3I ) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (22
£)), aged 52, is an executive director, chairlady of the Board and
chief executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed as a Director
on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive director and appointed
as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive officer on 19
December 2016. She is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Before founding the Group, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi was active in the film
and television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry.

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln ({1 ¥ 5), aged 48, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive director on 22 April 2020 and promoted to
chief operation officer effective at May 2020. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in a number
of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett etc., whose
clients included a world renowned international fast-food corporation,
personal skin care corporations, an automobile corporation and a
major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has also contributed in
the film industry that earned him a nomination in The 24th Hong Kong
Film Awards in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BREFE

Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority Hong
Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from 2017
to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He had
also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (%% &), 72, joined the Group in July 2020 as
an executive director. He had been serving as a public officer for 34
years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between 1995
and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEB2BREFE

of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (viii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. Between 2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a
Council member of the Hong Kong College of Community Medicine.
He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer Coordinating Committee from
2006 to June 2012. Between 2008 and June 2012, he was the Vice
Chairman of the Working Group on Diet and Physical Activity and
Steering Committee on Prevention and Control of Non-
Communicable Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman of Working
Group on Alcohol and Health and Working Group on Injuries from
2009 to June 2012. On various occasions, he had served as a
temporary advisor to the World Health Organization (“WHQ”) on policy
and strategy of development of traditional medicine and control of
non-communicable diseases. He served as Chairman to the
2009/2010 Session of the Regional Committee Meeting of the
Western Pacific Region of WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam
served as an Adviser of the Overseas Expert Consulting Committee
of the Ministry of Health of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
Health Care Reform. In 2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. He was further awarded with the Cross-Strait
Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese
Association on Tobacco Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the
Principal Adviser (International Collaboration) of the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of PRC between 2012
and 2017.

Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also a
fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (8% gl ), aged 75, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee of
the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I’'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012 and the
independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation Corp (7 &
38 I 15 B 'R A &) which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016 to 2022.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (E8 &% #1), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a member of
the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a member and fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
December 1987 and August 1998 respectively and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
since January 1999, and a member and fellow of the Institute of
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Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada since November 1990
and December 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in
auditing, finance and business management. He has been the sole
proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong since 1999. Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Kent,
England with a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting in July 1983 and a
Master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School
of Economics, England in August 1984. Mr. Cheng currently also acts
as an independent non-executive director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI Properties Limited (Stock
Code: 497), Top Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (Stock Code: 194), Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839), CPMC
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8439) and Kidsland International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2122). Mr. Cheng currently act as an
independent non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited,
which privatized on 30 September 2021 and C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd,
which privatized on 18 June 2022. Mr. Cheng retired as an
independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) with effect from 29
May 2020. Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of C.P. Lotus Corporation which was delisted on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 121) with effect from 28
October 2019, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
HKC (Holdings) Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 190) with effect from 8 June 2021 and
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 172) with effect from 2 August 2021.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z1{£3&), aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is a member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li has many years
of experience in accounting, finance and investment management.
Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal International Group
Limited (Stock code: 2232), which is principally engaged in
manufacturing of fashion products since November 2018, while he is
responsible for finance matters for that group. From March 2005 to
September 2006, he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board (Stock code: 330) and principally engaged in
manufacturing, retail and wholesale distribution of fashion products,
and he served as a vice president of operational finance and a vice
president of finance in Asia Pacific region, while he was responsible
for finance and operational matters. From October 2006 to
September 2010, he was a vice president of COFCO China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board (Stock
code: 606) and principally engaged in trading on agricultural raw
materials, manufacturing and distributing food products, while he was
responsible for finance, investment and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Li was a managing director and director of the board of COFCO
Agricultural Industrial Investment Fund Management Company
Limited, which is principally engaged in asset management, from
September 2010 to October 2011, and he was responsible for
managing overall business and investment matters. Mr. Li was a
managing director of Origo Partners PLC, whose shares are listed on
the London Stock Exchange and principal business is private equity
investment, from November 2011 to January 2013, and he was
responsible for investment matters. Mr. Li was the chief financial
officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai
Dahenggin Property Company Limited, which is principally engaged
in primary land development, real estate development, theme park
construction and operation, city operational management, and asset
management in Henggin Free Trade Zone, from August 2013 to
October 2018, while he was responsible for finance, investment and
fund management matters.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEB2BREFE

Mr. Li is a director of Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and
Apparel since 2022, a director, executive committee member and
honorary treasurer of the Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic
Cooperation Foundation since 2015, an Honorary President of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong &
Macau Branch since 2018, a Chairman of Institute of Public
Accountants — Hong Kong Branch since 2019, a Committee
member, SME committee of ACCA — Hong Kong Branch since
2019, and a General Committee member and Chairman of
Professional Education and Training Committee of the Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies since 2020.

Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership and
Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016, and a
board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada —
Hong Kong Chapter from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Li was a member of
Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the Macau University of
Science and Technology in 2016.

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BREFE

Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants in August 2000, a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analysts Institute in September
2001, a certified general accountant of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada in October 2002, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in October 2004, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2005, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2008, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April
2010, a chartered professional accountant of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015,
a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association in
December 2015, a fellow of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute in August 2016, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018, a fellow of
the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019, a fellow of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in July 2019, a business and finance
professional of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England &
Wales in December 2019, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association in December 2019.

Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Constructing Group Limited (Stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016. Mr. Li was the independent non-executive
director of China Asia Valley Group Limited (formerly known as China
Graphene Group Limited) (Stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to
30 November 2018, the independent non-executive director of China
Greenfresh Group Company Limited (Stock code: 6183) from 20 July
2018 to 5 June 2020, the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1808) from 27
April 2017 to 12 October 2020 and the independent non-executive
director of TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8536) from
18 May 2018 to 30 September 2021.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix C1 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code for the time being in force, except the deviation
stipulated below.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of the
Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”). As Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi has been leading
the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and a director of
each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of the relevant
major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of
the Group to continue to have Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Purpose, Values, Strategy and Culture

The core purpose of the Company is to create value for its
shareholders. It strives to become a well renowned enterprise in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products
and aims to be the powerhouse of Women'’s Love Brands that uplift
women to be the best vision of themselves with our comprehensive
range of customized medical aesthetics treatment services, skincare
and cosmetic products, and health supplements. Its mission is to
lead the development of the industry and set the industry
benchmarks. In this connection, it endeavours to maintain
accountability to its employees, consumers, shareholders, the
society, and the environment. These purposes and values shape the
Company’s strategy, which are geared towards building a trusted
and beloved enterprise whereby values for shareholders are created.
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Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during FY2024.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of the INEDs must
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All INEDs also meet the guidelines
for assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs makes an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of that view that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.
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Mechanism on Independent Views to the Board

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board has established a mechanism is to
enable Directors to seek independent professional advice when
exercising Directors’ duties to ensure a strong independent element
to the decision made by the Board which is key to an effective Board.

According to the mechanism, subject to the prior approval by the
executive director of the Company (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed),
independent legal, financial or other professional advice from advisors
independent of those advising the Company as and when necessary

the Directors may seek

in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively, either on the Company’s affairs or in
respect of their fiduciary or other duties, at the Company’s expense.
In case of the Board is seeking independent professional advice, prior
approval must be given by the executive director of the Company
(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

The Board will review this mechanism on an annual basis to ensure
the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation of
such mechanism and considered that such mechanism are effective.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief
Executive Officer and a director of each of major subsidiaries since
the establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive
Officer for more effective management and planning of the Group.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and appropriate in the
circumstances and currently does not propose to separate the
functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who
is responsible for overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of our Group. She also is a
member of remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination
Committee.
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Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2024 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out on page 29 of this report. At the Board meeting held on 25
June 2024, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before signature of the Chairlady. The
minutes are kept by the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
hE/ BITEERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE ¥FMZEE REZEE i
Ezgex EE = R BEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Plma L 4/4 - 11 11 11
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln AFskk 4/4 - - - 1/1
Dr. LAM Ping Yan MEREBE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV F#TES
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David BHELE 4/4 2/2 - 11 11
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo gHEANLE 4/4 2/2 11 1 11
Mr. LI Wai Kwan FTRELE 4/4 2/2 11 - 11

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company received from the Directors the following records
of the training attended during the year ended 31 March 2024.

EEREERER
ARBBEABEESEFETERRNE
—HRBIMRE RS 2 A R B BRI
SHRBTARZEEARIEMENERT
HEESFLEM EFHERARAREM
AT HREREE2024F3A31 HIEFEML
B ) SR DI RO 8%

Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
158 %28

Executive Directors BTES
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi BHm - v/
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln Al Fmdk A v
Dr. LAM Ping Yan MEBELE v 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo ERER AN A4 v v/
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David SP B ok A v v/
Mr. LI Wai Kwan FRELE 4
Type of trainings: IR
1. Reading materials. 1. BIEAMES o
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HEEIER &% wmiE/ TIED g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company and
its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s policies, including
board diversity policy, shareholders communication policy and
mechanisms to ensure independent views of the Board, and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in the corporate governance report of the Company
required to be prepared pursuant to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider,
review and decide any other topics, as authorised by the Board. During
the year, the Board reviewed and discussed the corporate governance
policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its
corporate governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG Fu
Kwok David, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. LI Wai Kwan and Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2024 and the meeting were attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee had
reviewed with the management and the external auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters
including the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023;

° the review of the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2023;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 29 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG Yuk
Wo and Mr. LI Wai Kwan. Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2024 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company
and assessed performance of executive directors.

The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
above executive directors who are the senior management of the
Company. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

The Company has a remuneration policy for Directors. Each of the
Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual adjustment
at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and be
determined at the discretion of the Board. The remuneration of the
Directors is determined, inter alia, by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director, namely
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok
David and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo. Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2024 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year ended 31 March 2024, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and board diversity
policy, discussed matters regarding the retirement and re-election of
Directors and succession planning for Directors and assessment of
the independence of INEDs. The Nomination Committee concluded
that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.
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Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically
and make recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When it is
necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional director,
the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting. The
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and
service to the Company, expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring Directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the
annual general meeting, to determine whether such Director
continues to meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this Policy when it identifies suitable and
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the validity
of implementation of the Policy and considered that the Policy are
effective.

The Board comprises 5 male Directors and 1 female Director. As at
31 March 2024, the Company has 324 employees in total comprising
of approximately 289 females and 35 males (a female-to-male ratio of
8.26:1).

The Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee of the
Company has reviewed annually gender diversity in the Group.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.

RABEAH EFEH REFMAK H
FZRAR/BUIIFRNTES - HUL AR R
B REZEEEREF EFQERNLFER
BEELR REMMBMSETRABRENS
TERE e

REMNBRLRESENENR  REZES
RROMEBRER -

RAEE REZEQCRIBHRBENA
MMt BBBREY -

EEoHoEIMEERIBLMESEMN -
R2024F3A31H ARE@BLEBI24%
BB ' #2890 B LM RISH B (LIEEFE
ML A8.26:1) 48K °

AEEREREEREZEZHAER  BFE
TRAMR - Fie - MERBESS - BE -
Bk FELR KRE -ANBERBEDR-
ARBREBZBEEFRAAKENLERZ
TeE e

BB R
RIEFSHESARARARARMEBER XM
K AR - BB Al B AN R M AR 3k (AR
NARIMERBENFR) AR R BB G 4% B iR
FGERFIBIRNS » R - REH T EFEBEA
RAEEMEZRNETE -

2024 Fif / SPEREBEEFRAT 35



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER®RE

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young is
set out as follows:

ZE AN 2
REFEN BN/ BATRAEHAES
Fr B e BT

Services rendered Fee paid/payable
P12 1 BR 7% B BB A
HK$’000

FHETT

Audit services =R 2,032
Non-audit services* FERZER 75~ 1,245

*Non-audit services included tax advisory and other related services.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2024. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”). The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a
culture of compliance, ethical behavior and good corporate
governance across the Group; and (ii) promote the importance of
ethical behavior and encourages the reporting of misconduct,
unlawful and unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee or the general manager of the risk management
department of the Group. No incident of fraud or misconduct that
have material effect on the Group’s financial statements or overall
operations for the year ended 31 March 2024 has been discovered.
The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Board has adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption
Policy”). The Group is committed to achieve the highest standards of
integrity and ethical behaviour in conducting business. The Anti-
corruption Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the
specific behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and
business partners must follow to combat corruption. It demonstrates
the Group’s commitment to the practice of ethical business conduct
and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that
apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with this commitment
and to ensure transparency in the Group’s practices, the Anti-
corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide to all employees of
the Group and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to
align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practice.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 26
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advising to the
Group on corporate governance matters. The finance director of the
Company, currently Mr. Richard Wong, is the person who Mr. Lo can
contact for the purpose of code provision C.6.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51 of Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the
Company to propose a person for election as Director is posted on
the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower, 88 Connaught
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development of the Company
and press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk
could make the Shareholders appraise the Company’s financial
position. Shareholders are highly required to pay attention to these
public information. Holding of an annual general meeting could
provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to share their views
with the Board. At the annual general meeting held in 2023, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of Directors and voted by way of
poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had attended the annual general meeting held in 2023 to
ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the Directors
had attended the annual general meeting held in 2023.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy and was
satisfied with the said policy and considered the overall
communication with shareholders was effective with the variety of
communication channels provided above.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

In September 2023, the Company amended its memorandum and
articles of association in order to (i) bring it in line with the latest legal
and regulatory requirements, including the amendments made to
Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022;
(i) to keep up with technological developments allowing general
meetings to be held as electronic meetings or hybrid meetings; and
(iiiy to incorporate certain housekeeping amendments. The proposal
for the amendments to the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association was considered and approved at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 15 September 2023. The existing amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association are available
for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Save for the said amendments, there have been no changes to the
memorandum and articles of association during the year.
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About this Report

Introduction

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. The Group recognises
the importance of sustainable development. Sustainability is crucial
for the Group’s growth in order to achieve business excellence and
enhance long-term competitiveness. The Group has established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor our significant
ESG-related risks. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from 1
April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
Group.

Reporting Scope

Our ESG Report mainly covers subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong which are principally engaged in the provision of medical
aesthetic services and the sale of skin care products accounting for
approximately 91% of the Group total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2024. The Group will continue to optimise and improve the
coverage of disclosure in this ESG Report.
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About this Report (Continued)

Reporting Basis

This ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the ESG Guide set
out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. The Group has complied with
the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Guide. During the process of preparation of this ESG
Report, we summarized the Group’s performance in corporate and
social responsibilities based on the principles of “Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. Please refer to the table
below for our understanding and response to such reporting

principles.

Reporting Principles
HERA

Definitions

BR

R AR L ()

s EE

AIBE B REAME RS LR AN
BC2FMMIBYE HEREARESIEE - &
EEDETEE LB REEES R TR
SRR G MM BT o AR ELARE -
HEREAREMBRT RAKEEE
M BAb - PER B 0RR] - B T A
EEECERHEEIIENES - E20H
TR IA T BRI 2 S 4R R B I A B o

Our Response

My E e

Materiality

B2

Quantitative

1

Balance

i

Consistency

—

The issues covered in this ESG Report
should reflect the significant impacts of the
Group on the economy, environment and
society, or the scope of assessments and
decisions of stakeholders being affected.
RIRE HERERAMEMNRENZBAIE
REAREBHLHE REMMENERY
2 FFNHEXTENTHIRREE -

The ESG Report should disclose key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a
measurable manner.

AR M REARERATEH R
BB R ENE R (RREMIEIR]) -

The ESG Report should reflect fairly the
overall sustainability performance of the
Group.

AR - HEREARERAFRBANE
BHEBARHERRRE

The Group should use consistent disclosure
principles for the preparation of the ESG
Report.

REEEGER - BHNRERIGRIIRE

e RERA®RE -
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Through continuous communication with
stakeholders, combined with the Group’s
strategic development and business
operations, we can identify current material
sustainable development issues.
FRPBEEBHERR  SEA5ED
RES B R R ERLE - RIAATHAE AT
MERAFERRZERE -

The Group quantitatively discloses its
environmental and social KPIs, and provides
textual explanations on quantitative
resources.
AEEEMMBEERERAGHERE
MR - W B ERIBH X FRHRE

The Group has explained in detail the
sustainable development issues that have a
significant impact in the business, including
the results achieved and the challenges it
faces.
AEEDFARBHRBEEATEN
AREERAE  BEMESHKR KR
P EREV DB

The Group will ensure that the disclosure
scope and reporting methods of the ESG
Report are generally consistent every year.
AEEBBRRE HEREAREDN
REHELRETARTFRERRE—
B o
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About this Report Continued)

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s formal documents, statistics or public information. The Board
is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its
contents.

Access to the Report

The ESG Report is available in Chinese and English versions. In case
of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English versions of the
ESG Report, the English version shall prevail. You may access the
Group’s official website at www.miricor.com or the website of the
Stock Exchange at http://www.hkex.com.hk for an electronic copy of
the ESG Report.

Sustainability Governance

The Group has established an ESG framework to promote and
implement the Group’s sustainability strategy. To ensure effective
ESG management, our ESG governance structure, composed of the
Board, ESG working group, respective functional departments and
subordinate companies, was established to promote ESG
management and disclosure. The Board, the ultimate decision-
making body of the Group, is responsible for the Group’s ESG
governance. The Board steers the Group’s sustainable development
forward and bears the overall responsibility of its ESG efforts. In the
future, the Board will continue to strengthen ESG risk management
and improve ESG working mechanism and regulatory processes to
enhance its ESG governance standard. The ESG working group,
serving on the supervision and coordination level, is responsible for
implementing ESG governance strategy, coordinating ESG matters,
compiling ESG reports, and reporting relevant work progress to the
Board on a regular basis. Each functional department and
subordinate company, serving on the execution level, is responsible
for rolling out initiatives set up by the ESG working group and
reporting relevant work progress and data.
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About this Report (Continued) AR AN S (&)
Sustainability Governance (Continued) AHEERERE)
4 N\ 4 N\
Decision-making level - The Board
REE " Exg
. J . i J
( . N\ ( N\
Supg NI.SIon and ESG working group
guideline level - -
EE RS BRIE - E8RERIENE
. J . i J
( N\ ( N\

Functional departments

Execution level . .
ecution feve and subordinate companies

v

Bl BALHPR TEAR
|\ J |\ J
Stakeholders Engagement B ESH

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies ~ #I7E Al BB HR MR EN S HE L H
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks ~ FEULEAREE THEAMR LK S c AEBED #
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are B % 5 X E#&FH & - ?BZ SEHREMHOES R
important to our business and established various channels for ZEIYZREBRT D

communication.
Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BHE e SHRE i
Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes
proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B F BEEPIRZEHNB BAEK HEERERE $ETJ§5£1§'J&%E1§IJZ§M B KA
B K 5R EMELeE ZXBHEE &
B N AT o
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About this Report Continued)
Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder
HHE

Expectation
ML

AN AN ()

FEHESHE)
Engagement channel Measures
SHRE B it

Shareholders and
Investors

BREREE

Employees

il
i

Customers

NS

Provide high transparency

for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s

rights and interest

AR RER AN
P BT AR AR SRAE R
Flas

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

MEREMEENTIE
SR BRFEREIA
MigE k&2

Provide safe, high-quality
products and services to
customers

mEPREHftZE -
H) E dn M AR 75

BE

Annual reports, interim
reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

F - RS

SN

BRBFREREMBRER

e
B R

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and

promotion

Bk ERE  EERE
HEIA R EREANRA
R 1l

Customer satisfaction
surveys, customer
feedback activities, day to
day operations/
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
BEEmEHE BEFRE
B BEEE @
Bl 75 K2 E mn #2 5F J% [B] FE
il

Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
BRTBFR PHRE
RIEF -
EHRRAEEE MRER IR

-
=

RAESHER

E2RZE

Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.

REBRME  RESBAR LR - B
RER RERR - Bk -Ee R
- FRAHMERITANBRZER
REFER -

Strengthened quality management to
ensure safety, high quality production and
communicate with customers to improve
quality of services.

maEEEENERRE  BELE
WEREFEBANERBEE -
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About this Report (Continued)

Materiality Assessment

The Group attaches importance to the materiality assessment of ESG
issues for the purpose of timely and comprehensive understanding of
the materiality of each ESG issue to the business development of the
Group and the expectation of stakeholders, in order to facilitate the
Group’s effective disclosure of ESG information and continuous
improvement in the management level of relevant issues. The
materiality assessment on ESG issues of the Group during the
reporting period covers the following steps:

Step 1 The Group identified the following 21 issues in
accordance with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide and based on the business
characteristics and daily operation of the Group. These
issues are considered to have impacts on the
environment and the society during our operation.

Step 2 Based on the understanding of the demands and
expectations of stakeholder during the daily operation,
the Group determined the materiality of ESG issues by
benchmarking the key points and the trend of ESG
works of industry peers.

Step 3 Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
Group discussed and determined the key disclosure of
the ESG Report for the reporting period and the key
points for improvement in the future ESG work of the
Group.
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About this Report Continued)
Materiality Assessment (Continued)

Social Aspects
HEEE

Environmental Aspects
REEH

1. Equal opportunity
FERe

. Prevention of child

labor and forced
labor
BriEET Ko

“T

9. Complaint handling
R

13. Community
investment

itEKE

14, Exhaust emissions

BRI

18. Water
consumption

FEKE

2. Employment and

. Selection and

10. Protection of

15. Greenhouse gas

19. Paper and

employee evaluation of intellectual property emissions packaging
benefits suppliers rights BERBHH materials
EERESRR ERRTAHE RERNHER consumption
& HR kB EME
AR
3. Occupational . Control and 11. Customer data 16. Waste 20. Management of
health and safety management on privacy and data management risks associated
BEREHEZ2 environmental and security BENEE with Environmental
social risks along EFYEALRR and Natural
the supply chain zZ2 Resources
ERRERME ERRERRA
EHIRE kit BREBER
el
4, Employee . Product and 12. Anti-corruption 17.Energy 21. Climate change
development and service quality and money consumption RIEE1(
training ERRBRBEE laundering SR B
EEHRE S RESRKERE

1R E BT R - 81EE BB (5D
WA HERAEEREINER - 2
BB R @AM FE - A B 5 E A
E A BB R ERE R E
EHER -

According to the results of materiality assessment, 8 material topics
(note) are regarded as the most concermned issues of stakeholder and
the Group. While taking into account environmental and social
responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above areas,
and strive to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable
business development.

Note: Presented in bold. FisE - LAAREBZS -
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Environmental Aspects

Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Quiallified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 305 kg
(20283: 211 kg).
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources” of this ESG Report.

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2023 are as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions

RIBEE (®)

B ()
REEEBSEREERIEERERIE
M%Eﬁﬁ%v%ﬁ%%%é@%ﬂkim
TR - REE B REAEERIEFER
KRB B REAREERER| -

RS B M 2023 FHBEHE MR - BEHEN
MEBEZERTRYMT

ZERITRUER
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant
Emission (kg) Emission (kg)
ZREEY ZERISRY
Type of Air Pollutants ERSRYER BHE (TR) BHE(FR)
2024 2023
Sulphur Dioxide & bR 0.03 0.03
Nitrogen Oxides REY 0.77 0.69
Particulate Matter FRIFHRF 0.06 0.05

During the reporting period and the corresponding period in 2023,
the GHG emissions from the operation is set out below:

GHG Emissions

R¥mE BN 2023 FHBHMEAR - £BEL
VEEREHFRDEINAT

BEREBHERY

Equivalent CO, Equivalent CO,
emission (kg) emission (kg)
“EtREE —StREE
Type of GHG emissions BERBEHERMER BERE(TR) HHE(TR)
2024 2023
Scope 1 Direct emissions HE1HEEHENR 4,765.84 4,787.50
Scope 2 Indirect emissions & [E 2 BEIR 284,538.55 290,672.79
Total @t 289,304.39 295,460.29
Intensity (kg/Revenue HK$’000) BE (T, METHET) 0.59 0.64

Note: M 5T -

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol and the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX.

BREREDRBEAEREHATENDEEH RREEL]
ﬁiﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%% CHERERWE — 8
= RERMREMIERERIES G E -
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period and
the corresponding period in 2023 are set out below:

Energy Consumption

RIREME (#)

gREA

mMAEEM B  BERZ2HEIETE -
REEBANELRERREROERER -
51 40 35 E 10 5 B HE L PE T B IR LA R B S 2K
BB o A E B IRA [ BRPAEE
AE BRI EFER - EFE BRI T -

R R & B M 2023 F R HIM A - AR B
HREZRERESN AT

BEIRHFE
Energy consumed Energy consumed
(kWh) (kWh)
EREREE REREEE
Type of energy feRER (FE&) (FE&)
2024 2023
Unleaded petrol EiiS i 17,056.80 17,134.33
Purchased electricity HMNEE 475,253.00 474,515.00
Total Bt 492,309.80 491,649.33
Energy intensity BERS8 E (TR, Wt F/ET) 1.00 1.06

(kWh/Revenue HK$’000)

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper (e.g. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 525 kg (2023: 576 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the corresponding period
in 2023, the total consumption of the water and water intensity per
employee is 229 m® and 0.0005 m%Revenue HK$'000. In light of the
renewed tenancy agreement during the reporting period, bill of water
consumption was included in rental. Thus, record of water
consumption during the reporting period is not available.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes
or less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from
20° C to 25.5° C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5° C. Also,
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the
reporting period and the corresponding period in 2023 are
summarized below:

IRIBEM (&)
HHAE

ERERVERNERSNOER - LEHMm
S BPHEREXNAB209EBHIARN - Z8E
R 20°CE255°CHE BB HZERE A
25.5°C © AN DU B H B R EBIRAEE
TE AR o

BEIRKE
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Packaging Material Consumption

BEMBEFE
Amount (kg) Amount (kg)
Packaging material BEMR HEE(TR) HEE(TR)
2024 2023
Paper R 20,263.64 92,892.95
Plastic bottle 20 6,807.34 156,902.23

In view of our continuous effort, we target to maintain zero substantial
non-compliance case in relation to the emission of exhaust gases,
GHG, non-hazardous clinical waste, energy consumption and water
consumption in coming five years. Furthermore, we target to reduce
or maintain the emission of exhaust gases, GHG, non-hazardous
clinical waste, energy consumption and water consumption around
the current level for the next reporting period.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sessions
“Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is committed to mitigating the climate change and
enhancing its resilience to adapt to the increasing threat of climate-
related consequences.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
(including significant climate-related issues) by the Group are
summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and considers
the impact and consequence on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place; revises the risk management strategies and
internal control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

As a result of above risk management process, physical risk and
transitions risks arising from climate change may not bring significant
impacts to the Group’s business. As a supporter of the
recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD), the Group has assessed the potential climate
related risks and identified the rising mean temperature and increasing
severity and likelihood of extreme weather events such as rainstorms,
floods, fire and heatwaves as major physical risks impacting our daily
operation.

The Group’s ESG working group is responsible for identifying and
assessing any climate-related risks to which the Group’s operations
are exposed, and updating the Board with the latest news and
developments on climate regulations and industry benchmark. In
order to cope with climate-related risk, the Group implemented
various emergency response mechanism and purchase adequate
insurance against natural disasters so as to cope with extreme
weather.

In the future, we will continue to identify potential business activities
impacting the environment and develop corresponding improvement
measures, so as to further prevent the possible negative impacts of
our operation on climate change.
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Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a commission scheme
which applies to all services and products we offer, including the
sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin care products.

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employees by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region as at 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023:
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2024 2023
Number Number
of staff % of total of staff % of total
HEAH HEAH
BT A BaOL BT AH Ao
By gender MR8l 2
Male St 35 11 25 8
Female g 289 89 289 92
Total HBEt 324 100 314 100
By age group BERARE D
30 or below 30K LA T 90 28 96 31
31-40 31-403% 146 45 129 41
41-50 41-505% 57 18 60 19
51 or above 515 A 31 9 29 9
Total HEt 324 100 314 100
By employment type REBERES
Contract or short term & #) 5 A B 12 4 12 4
Full-time 28 312 96 302 96
Total HBEt 324 100 314 100
By geographical region ZihE 8 5
Chinese Mainland and B A b N B 324 100 314 100

Hong Kong
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2023:

HEEE @)

BEREIERZE)
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2024 2023
Turnover rate by gender BRI Bl D R K
Male B 54% 18%
Female pegiis 56% 67%
Turnover rate by age group BRERADE DN R AR
30 or below 30BREIA TN 80% 61%
31-40 31-40 5% 51% 79%
41-50 41-50 % 46% 47%
51 or above 51BR A £ 23% 41%
Turnover rate by geographical region it & 2| 5 K %k =R
Chinese Mainland and R A K 56% 59%

Hong Kong

There were total 180 employees (2023: 186 employees) left the
Group during the reporting period.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and during each of the
past three years including the reporting period, no work-related
fatalities and no material lost days due to work injury was recorded.

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Our trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We also provide on the job training to our staff. We
are of the view that the ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in
medical aesthetic services and to offer quality service will impact our
client traffic, revenue growth and financial performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.

Below is a detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category during the reporting
period and the corresponding period in 2023:
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2024 2023
Trained employee by gender EHREINZIES
Male B 34% 20%
Female M 100% 100%
Trained employee by BEERERESH

employment category ZIEE

Normal —& 100% 100%
Middle R AR 21% 95%
Senior SE 23% 18%

60  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

The average training hours for employees by gender and employment
category during the reporting period and the corresponding period in
2023 are as follows:

MHeEEm e

BERLEITEE &)

BREREN (E)

1A SR 25 H R 2 2023 4F 48 B HA R P9 2 1 B R 1
BERESH MRS FHZIEHMT :

2024 2023

Hours per Hours per

employee employee

The average training hours for BB NEETEHZIEE BEEE BEER

employees by gender RFE 8

Male BH 6.37 3.32

Female pegia 273.65 166.54

The average training hours for REBERESN

employees by employment category {EEFHIZIIEE

Normal —&R 307.86 179.42

Middle H AR 3.14 3.58

Senior = AR 3.31 0.55

Labour Standards

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained and are open to verification by any
authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit provides an
annual report to the functional head on any incidents of child or
forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; (iv) whether it is accredited with
certification and qualification related to environmental protection; and
(v) our internal test results. The approval of our chief executive officer
and doctors must be obtained before we procure a new treatment
device.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by manufacturers,
all of which are independent third parties. We select and source skin
care products carefully based on factors such as the suppliers’
background, credentials and reputation, product quality and cost.
The approval of our chief executive officer and laboratory technician
must be obtained before we take in any new product for sale. As at
31 March 2024, we have approximately 99 approved suppliers from
around the world. Our suppliers are mainly located in Chinese
Mainland, Hong Kong, Switzerland, France, Japan and Korea.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high quality.
We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety standards,
as well as those governing testing, advertising and labeling. The
Group was in strict compliance with related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance, Consumer
Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety Regulation
during the reporting period. Our goal is to instill confidence in our
customers regarding our products and services, along with the
necessary information to make informed choices. Therefore, the
Group has a set of policies and procedures to oversee and manage
issues related to responsibilities of our products and services.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors provide consultation services and perform specific
treatment procedures that are specified in the relevant laws and
regulations. Additionally, they may carry out selective treatment
procedures that are considered high risk, based on their professional
judgement. On the other hand, our trained therapists perform other
selective treatment procedures under the guidance and direction of
our doctors. Selective energy-based procedures are conducted
exclusively by our doctors, taking into account their professional
experience and judgement regarding the risk of severe complications.
These procedures are performed by our doctors when there is a
potential risk of irreversible organ or tissue damage, such as nerve
injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or skin necrosis.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promaotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Intellectual Property Rights

We operate our business under the brand name “CosMax+”, “VITAE”
and “XOVE”, which we believe embodies our established reputation
for quality services and products. We believe that our intellectual
property rights are critical to our continued success. We primarily rely
on laws and regulations on trademarks and trade secrets and our
employees’ and third parties’ contractual commitments to
confidentiality to protect our intellectual property rights.

The Group’s research and development department is the
department responsible for the work related to intellectual property
rights, responsible for the acquisition, modification, renewal, licensing,
pledge, transfer, logout, and monitoring of intellectual property of all
units including trademarks, functional variable names, copyrights,
patents, responsible for guiding, supervising, and managing the
intellectual property rights maintenance and rights protection and
anti-counterfeiting of all units. The Group regularly conducts
intellectual property rights business training for relevant staff of various
units to enhance employees’ awareness of intellectual property rights
protection. The research and development department conducts
random inspections on the management of intellectual property rights
of various units from time to time.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

Besides, the Group also requires our staff to make every effort to
safeguard and enhance the intellectual property rights of the Group
while fully respecting legal intellectual property rights of third parties.
In addition, the Group would also sign confidentiality agreement and
competition prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers to
prevent the infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees
who are suspected of violating relevant rules shall be under
investigation and the Group would take appropriate actions to this.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

During the year, there was no products sold/service provided subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons and no material complaints
about our products and services received.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. Besides, anti-corruption training were provided to
senior management through internal training during the reporting
period.

The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to

programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made donations to various local charitable organisations
during the reporting period. Besides, the Group had also contributed
to the sustainable development of the community by serving with
care and concern for the underprivileged through the activities during
the reporting period as follows:

° Joining Dress Pink Day and made donation to the Hong Kong
Cancer Fund

° Joining volunteer activities such as tree planting in Kadoorie
Farm and Botanic Garden

° Joining the charity walk and made donation to the Hong Kong
Federation of Handicapped Youth

The following is resources contributed for the above mentioned
activities during the reporting period and the corresponding period in
2023 are as follows:
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Guide

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEEHE BEH —REERBEREVER E=4:0]

A.  Environmental

218

Aspect At: Emissions

[BEAT e
General Disclosure Emissions
—MEE B

KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions

BRRERIER R IE L AR BB - B

Al.1

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity.

BRRERIERSR B (8E1) kREEZ (BE2) AERBEFNER (WER)BE - PEn

Al.2

KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. The Group generated no

KPI A1.4

PR AE IR IR
A1.4

KPIA1.5
FAR R UE R
A15

significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period.

EXAEEEYEER (WMER)TE - REB RN RS HE & AE
HEERBEEEY -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Recycled paper disposed at
landfills — Use of Resources

FREEREEZERER (MER)RBE - ZEMNEERRNRRA
— BRERA

Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve them. Use of Resources

BT VOB EE R R BEINELREMERNTR - IR A
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S A RS TAR A RKIRE
R4Sl )

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4z 0]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emissions
and a description of reduction targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.
BA B2 AE BUIEAR Tmtr@ﬁﬁi&ﬂif%%Eﬁﬁi A PRE] ST EVRE B B R A PR

A1.6

Aspect A2:
BEA2 :

KPI A2.1
BB R AUE R
A2.1

KPI A2.2

RARERUE IR
A2.2

KPI A2.5

RSB AR IR
A2.5

ZREL BIZFTREE TR -

Use of Resources

BIREM

General Disclosure

—RWE

Direct and indirect energy Consumption by type in total.

RPN D BEE N HEERERES

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BREKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency targets set and steps taken to
achieve them.

R RERARAPIAT LR B IR R REDEL B IEMERIAN TR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency and targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.

et SREGE KR R BERERE - BKMGEMEI LB B R R RE

B E L B IRPTERERA) P 5] -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
BRMATABREMEMEER (WER) SEESMNEE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4 0]
Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[EEAS RIERRAER
General Disclosure The Environmental and
Natural Resources
—MEE RFERRAEIR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment Emissions & Use of
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Resources

BABEIEIE HBllEKEHHRBERAERNEAFERERNEEFETE Heru K &R E
A3.1 RITTE) o

Aspect A4: Climate Change
FEAL - REE(
General Disclosure Climate Change
—HRRE IR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions

taken to manage them.
BREXIET HASCRARESHBETAEEZENEARGHEAEE - REX A2
A4 REREHETENTE -
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S A RS TAR A RKIRE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE BEH —REERBRERER =4z 0]
B.  Social
e
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREBIER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EHEBT &%
General Disclosure Employment
—MREE =
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region.
MRENIESR RUR - EBEER  FHRANKMESZSIES L - &%
B1.1
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employment
FREBIEE BRI - FRARRMMEE S HEBRALE - &%
B1.2
Aspect B2: Health and safety
[EEB2 : fEREET R
General Disclosure Health and safety
—RRIREE REEZ S
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Health and safety

KPIB2.2
BB R UE R
B2.2

KPI B2.3

RA A R 1R
B2.3

three years including the reporting year.

RIBE = AEE (REREFE) S F 3R TERRTIET AR
Bkt o

Lost days due to work injury.

RTHBERHTIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

WP RANBRBFERZ 25 - LWRAERRITRERTE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

IRHER BH - —REERBERERER

B AR

ZPAER D AIHIRE -

(=)
e MkEamEEsl @

Section

B

Aspect B3:
[BEBS3 :

KPI B3.1
BB R UE R
B3.1

KPI B3.2

RAR AR IR
B3.2

Aspect B4:
FB4

KPIB 4.1

RASR 48 R IR
B41

KPIB 4.2
RAR AR IR
B4.2

Development and Training

TR RE

General Disclosure
— MR =

The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category.

RERIREEEREIPNZIEBEA DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
ZURIREERERE D - BREETHZINA TR -

LLabour Standards
5 TR

General Disclosure
— MR E

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.
i BEEANEEA RS ET REHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

B IRE R B ER B BB IR P8 -

Development and Training
EEYE=E

Development and Training
EEYE=E

Development and Training

BRRE

LLabour Standards
2 T 2R

LLabour Standards

B TRA

LLabour Standards
4 TR
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FEHE - BE@-
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S A RS TAR A RKIRE
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Section

3]

Operating Practices

EEED

Aspect B5:
MBS :

KPI B5.1
BB R AUE R
B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

RAR AR IR
B5.3

KPI B5.4

RS AE MR R
B5.4

Supply Chain Management
HERER

General Disclosure

—RWE

Number of suppliers by region.

minmE DM HEHmEAE -

Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRI A EEED
MEBBRITRERTTE -

RMENTHREMNNHEREE - A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A B HEEGERSNIRE T GRROEN - A RIEH
MITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, how they are
implemented and monitored.

i BB B I (R 2 IR R an S IRIG B 1E 1 -
TRERF .-

A KRR
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FEHE - EH -

—REBERBRENER

FIERABIEERE -
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Section

B

Aspect B6:
86 :

KPI B6.1

RASR 48 R IR
B6.1

KPI B6.4

RAR AR IR
B6.4

KPI B6.5

RAR AR IR
B6.5

Product Responsibility
EmAE

General Disclosure

—RWE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
EEREEXEMRE

BT EL R ERFEEHMARNKNBE DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
BEEANERRRGRFEE UREEFIE -

Description and practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

1H it B I AR IR G EE R R R RO 1B ) -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures .

i EEREEREREREKER -

Description of customer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

AU BEERRERLBBE - URAEERTRERTA -

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility

b}

EmE L

Product Responsibility

EmAE

Product Responsibility
— Intellectual Property
Rights
EmEE — MBERE

Product Responsibility
— Quality Assurance
EmEF —

EERE

Product Responsibility
— Customer Data
Information Protection

EmEE - BEPEEEHN

REE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EB7 : R&S
General Disclosure Anti-corruption
— MR R&ES
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the case.
FAREMIEER ROSHRNEETASIEEERBYEERANESFARGHE & R&Es
B7.1 FEnsER o
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, Anti-corruption

KPI B7.3
RAR AR IR
B7.3

how they are implemented and monitored.
R 8645 b SR B IRAR T - ARMEBRITRER X -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to Directors and staff.
fHmEERE TRHENREE -
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Section

B

Aspect B8:
[BEBS :

KPI B8.1

RARERUE R
B8.1

KPI B8.2
RAR AR IR
B8.2

Community Investment

HEERE

General Disclosure
— MR =

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,

labour needs, health, culture, sport).

I EREE (KA -

RIREE STIHEK @F e 8BF) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
EFEIBREMEBAER (WS EXER) o

Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
non-surgical medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and sale
of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 16 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the Directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
Our business operations are mainly based in and we derive most of
our revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the
demand for our medical aesthetic and wellness beauty services and
the sale of skin care products are therefore subject to the economic,
social and political conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore, any
incidence of social unrest, strike, riot, civil disturbance or
disobedience in Hong Kong may cause inconvenience to clients who
wish to visit our treatment centres and weaken their desire or
willingness to undergo treatments. Any of the above circumstances
may have a material and adverse impact on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

In addition, in the past years, a portion of our revenue was derived
from visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong
Kong. Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors
and tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and
tourists to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may
significantly reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 43 to 77 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
101 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 19 September 2024. A notice convening the meeting will
be issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 13
September 2024 to Thursday, 19 September 2024 both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares can be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 12 September 2024.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 184. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2024, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$60,893,000
(2023: HK$59,927,000).

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$433,000 (2023: HK$129,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2024.
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The maximum number of share options available for grant pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme was 40,000,000, representing 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024
and the date of the report.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 2
years and 6 months (expiring on 19 December 2026).

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years and continuing thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years, provided that either the Company or
the INEDs may terminate such appointment at any time by giving at
least three months’ notice in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Chinese
Mainland are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$6,351,000 (2023: HK$6,595,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains Directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 17 to 24 of
the annual report.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in
any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2024, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:
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a. REQXARGIEFR:

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
AKDF BB

EEHA B1ip REME iR & H BAEANEDE
Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%

corporation (Note 1)

RNzt REEEER (M)
Note:
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and 50% by Mr. MA Ting Keung, Patrick
(“Mr. Patrick MA”). Mr. Patrick MA is the spouse of Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi.
Therefore, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.

B EE -

1. 275,000,000 % A% 17 LA Yo % 12 B 5 R A &)
(M%F] —HBaRImMaZ T REEREE
(r%ﬁé’ﬁs‘ﬁiﬁ/ﬁ%ugfﬁ%ﬁm%&m%
EHNAR)BEEL - FEREEARN
ﬁ'ﬁiziﬁ’]@ﬁf% it - IRIEFHFRBEEK
Bl - BRI Z AR B KA 2 IR
DA o

2024 3R/ EHEREEERAF

85



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. REBZIEROGHFRE:

Percentage of

the Company’s

Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued

Name of Director corporation interest shares held  share capital

KAFEET

BEERR HEEEER 54 REmitE FEROBE REANBEILE

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%

interest of spouse
B2+ HF EnA AREBEZ

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued RIMEZER/IEFIKRBEEHITEBRNAE

ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share EmEB A HAEH0%E ?"ﬂ AR AR o
capital of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick MA is the legal and beneficial %L?ﬁ?ﬁi{ﬁj‘z?ﬁ% 1REEITEBERNE
owner of the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, JAREZEZm#EA A - EXF R TEIS0%E 1T

representing the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny ~ AXZN o B S LR 5t 4 BRI T 2 LY ECAE -

Bright. As Mr. Patrick MA is the spouse of Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi, Ms.
LAl Ka Yee Gigi is deemed to be interested in all the interest
registered in Mr. Patrick MA’s name in Sunny Bright. Accordingly,
together with the 50% shareholding interest in Sunny Bright registered
in Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi's name, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is taken to be
interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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2z KRB

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company
As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the person 720243 A31H » T AL (KR FES
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or & E BT A BBIN) KA RHA AIRIEE S
company which were required to be recorded in the register required N Hi & (&5 5 336 IF e % £ BIF & 2 & o fit
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow: RS RABWT
So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2024, other than FEEEFE - N2024E3A31 8 B ARAQ A
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following ZEZEREZBITHABI > TIH AL EER
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or AR QA G D SkFEBI D P EH BIRIEE 5
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be K Hi & £ HI EEXVEBRE 2 & 39 B[ A A &
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the ~ F& 3k 7B R 15 75 % 2 B & (5 0] 55 336 {§ :2 #% /£
SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company ZBFEEZ AR aEDMAOERIIXE
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEQATRGIER -
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/ issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
iy BB KRB E BT
Pt B1ip REME EENROEE BAENE D
Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%
S F EmEEA
Mr. Patrick MA Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%
and interest of spouse (Note 1)
HiEmEs EEHEE S KBRS
(BzE1)
Meitu, Inc. Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
EERAA EnHBA
Note: B EE -

1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company 1. 275,000,000 A& A& 17 LA £ %2 (— R R 23 i %+ K

beneficially owned as to 50% by Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and 50% by Mr. Patrick MA. B LA D I E 258 50% R 50% XA F])

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi is the spouse of Mr. Patrick MA. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick MA BERER - BWMr T REER L AN - Bt -

is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO. RIBEFLFRHEGY - SERLERRABR T
BRI P EAER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was 8.4% (2023:
4.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 13.1% (2023: 11.7%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2024, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 46.7%
(2023: 41.2%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.
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Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi and Mr. Patrick MA (collectively the
“Controlling Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things,
each of them does not or will not, and will procure each of their
respective close associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on,
participate in, be engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for
their own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any
other person in any business in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group upon the
Listing of the Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are
set out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
25 to 42 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period
There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAI Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 25 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R E

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 101 to 1883, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BgESTER

FERETE1H (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEAEFTPRNABREEN

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights
of the prepaid packages before expiry of the service
period, and such unexercised rights are referred to as
breakage.

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as
revenue in proportion to the expected pattern of rights
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages is
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2024, the
carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$131,320,000. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
revenue recognised from treatment services amounted to
HK$374,538,000.

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages
involves significant management’s judgement to determine
the appropriate amount and timing based on the Group’s
accounting policy for revenue recognition. The
determination of the expected breakage amount involves
significant estimates based on the Group’s historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages and the
expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

° assessing the estimates used in the determination of
the expected breakage amount such as historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
examining the related usage records and comparing
to the actual usage records on a sampling basis;
and

° testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of the amount of revenue recognised
during the reporting period and the amount of
contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period by examining the underlying sales contracts
and related records on a sampling basis.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
HREETEE

FRETEH @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

FRETEH )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEE B R AR

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately HK$85,789,000 and HK$83,107,000,
respectively.

Management performed impairment assessments on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets where an indicator of impairment of these assets
exists. Impairment losses of HK$1,430,000 and
HK$1,170,000 were recognised during the year to reduce
the carrying amounts of certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively, to their
recoverable amounts.

Management determined the recoverable amounts of the
relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”) as at 31 March
2024 based on the value in use calculations using the
discounted cash flow method. Significant judgements and
estimates were involved in the assessments of the
recoverable amounts, including assumptions on the
growth rates and discount rates. The outcome was
sensitive to expected future market conditions and the
actual performance of the relevant CGUSs.

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 13
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators;

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology, certain key
assumptions and estimates used in the value in use
calculations;

assessing the key assumptions used in the value in
use calculations, including the growth rates and
discount rates, with reference to the historical
financial data, available industry and market data
and business plan of management; and

assessing the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

FRETEH @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEE B R AR

YE - BB KRR A RANEHERERBEF S

R2024F3H31 B - REBMWE - KE L& ENLEFE

FAHEE 53 B 4985,789,000 7 7T % 83,107,000/ T °

EAEENYE BERXBEUAREHEEELERE
REE - EEEHZEEERITRENG RAFE -
T 52 Rl & B3 #8 1,430,000 % 7T 12 1,170,000 % 7T LA 6 & T
ME - WEREEHEAREAEEENREEARZ EA

(O] Y & 58

EEERAMBRSAES  REMEEFEET 2024
FIAMBMBEEReELEM ([REELFEM]) MR
Ym0 o 5l A W B & B R EAHE R AR B
EHRERERBRERZBE - BRGRHIBHARKD

ARERRSELBEUMNERRATE -

HRREMNAGZEPTERERWNE24 3 183K 14

96  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

BFIMEIEF B

o A AREERERETFROBEREEER

s ZEHMANANEEZEIBEHRMAFEEREE
SEMEANTTE BT E2RE MM

s ZERLUMBEE ARTERMSHREBEUARE
BEEXGEFHERBEAEMRKANTIER
R(BEBRERMEREX) K

o HARAMBEHRZAMEKE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R E

Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

25 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBEENRHEAZERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE 20243 A31 HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M5 FERT FHT
REVENUE U 3 5 494,260 463,117
Other income and gain, net H A A M e 25 0% B8 5 5,762 9,445
Cost of inventories and consumables GFERBFERKR (52,839) (47,430)
Staff costs B IR (183,820) (177,460)
Property rentals and related expenses MERS REERZ (67,925) (69,959)
Depreciation of property, Y- BEREREITE
plant and equipment (42,437) (44,449)
Other expenses, net E B F (159,626) (153,471)
Finance costs B TS AR 6 (5,155) (3,660)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBL AT 18 7 (11,780) (23,867)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (AX%) 10 (836) 3,366
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (12,616) (20,501)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt 2 EE R
Other comprehensive loss that may be REZBRAAJEEH ESE
reclassified to profit or loss in B EMmEmEE -
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of REBINETEE R Z58
foreign operations (1,334) (56)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXHEBREARE
FOR THE YEAR (13,950) (20,557)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AA R ERERIZTEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhERES
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted HEARRE#E HK(3.15) cents  HK(5.13) cents

(3.15) 581l (5.13)7& 11l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FmEBMBEMRRE
As at 31 March 2024
M2024%3 A31H

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Nz FExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKEE 13 85,789 101,075
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 83,107 109,304
Goodwill EES 15 - -
Deposits e ia 18 9,559 15,460
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 25 18,426 17,643
Total non-current assets IERBEELRE 196,881 243,482
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories TE 16 42,151 38,194
Trade receivables B 5 BRI 17 13,402 18,077
Prepayments, deposits, FENRIE - &
other receivables and other assets Hi R R R B & E 18 41,271 34,013
Tax recoverable AJ Uy [2] # 18 3,305 3,720
Pledged time deposits B E BT R 19 62,604 62,414
Cash and cash equivalents BeMNREZEY 19 119,829 116,911
Total current assets MEEELE 282,562 273,329
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables B EMNER 20 10,561 10,544
Other payables and accruals HEMEMERRRETEA 21 29,944 21,300
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue & #4188 RIELEI 22 182,965 182,048
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 23 12,510 19,170
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 35,731 44,467
Tax payable FERT IR 1,221 5,417
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E18 A A H 1 24 5,045 3,619
Total current liabilities MBI B EEE 277,977 286,565
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #BI&E (B&) B4 4,585 (13,236)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEEBRARBEE
LIABILITIES 201,466 230,246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

me i BARR R
As at 31 March 2024
M2024F 3 H31H

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 14(b) 51,508 66,639
Provision for reinstatement costs BB R AN 24 8,800 9,749
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFIE B (E 25 4,395 3,145
Total non-current liabilities BB EREE 64,703 79,533
Net assets BEFE 136,763 150,713
EQUITY B
Issued capital BRI A 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves {1 28 132,763 146,713
Total equity EmRE 136,763 150,713

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi

YN &+
Director

EF

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln

F=REE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBEXR

For the year ended 31 March 2024

BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

Share  Exchange

Issued premium fluctuation Retained Total
capital account reserve profits equity
BE8T R4 EX RE Bi

AEN HEE  KDRB A mE

HK$000 ~ HK§000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TRL TR T

At 1 April 2022 2022 F4 A1 R 4,000 67,788 310 99,172 171,270
Loss for the year FEBRE - - - (20,501) (20,501)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZHEEE
for the year:
Exchange differences on BMEBNEBNERZSE
translation of foreign operations - - (56) - (56)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBERRE
for the year - - (56) (20,501) (20,557)
At 31 March 2023 and R2023F3A31H R
at 1 April 2023 R2023F4 A1 R 4,000 67,788 254 78,671 150,713
Loss for the year FEEHA - - - (12,616) (12,616)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZHEES
for the year:
Exchange differences on BMEBNEBNELEZS
translation of foreign operations - - (1,334) = (1,334)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBERSE
for the year - - (1,334) (12,616) (13,950)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 4,000 67,788* (1,080)* 66,055* 136,763

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$132,763,000  * ZERBREPRERAVBMRARZGEARE
(2023: HK$146,713,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 132,763,000/ 7T (2023 4F : 146,713,000/ L) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERNER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFIBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FrELRIEE (11,780) (23,867)
Adjustments for: T BB
Interest income F B UA 5 (5,323) (2,354)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWME - HE ME&H
plant and equipment, net 18 B Wz 55 5 (60) (164)
Finance costs IR TN 6 5,155 3,660
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREREBETE
equipment 7 42,437 44,449
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 7 50,807 46,098
Impairment of property, plant and W - BRERZRERE
equipment 7 1,430 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERRAEERE 7 1,170 -
Impairment of goodwill R E 7 - 4,305
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B S RKRTURE
trade receivables, net OB ERERE) F58 7 (477) 561
Write-off of inventories WiEFE 7 1,979 2,094
85,338 74,782
Increase in inventories 7(_ =380 (6,451) (2,319)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 fiE I B 2 /Ul /() 4,668 (16,581)
Increase in prepayments, deposits, BB - 1S - 2
other receivables and other assets & W AR &ﬁ@ é?i pill (3,594) (1,342)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BT REFOR D (3G m)
time deposits (190) 62
Increase in trade payables BN EE/TM" hn 17 2,715
Increase in other payables H RN R ER & AN
and accruals 8,261 876
Increase in contract liabilities BB EMETE RN
and deferred revenue 917 51,810
Decrease in provision for 118 R 7 32 R
reinstatement costs (1,265) (50)
Cash generated from operations KEEBEERNRS 87,701 109,953
Interest received 2 Y ER 7F'J 5,044 971
Interest element of lease payments HERF E’J F B EB S (4,144) (3,333)
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net ENBEAERNSEFE (4,150) (8,138)
Net cash flows from operating activities & & EBFFS3IR & R E T4 84,451 99,453
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHFMBRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BEMEKEER
plant and equipment (26,114) (24,174)
Deposits paid for purchases of items EEYWE BELRREEEN
of property, plant and equipment [RENE-& (101) (2,607)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE - BERRXREIEE
property, plant and equipment Pﬁ?:ef SKIA 60 242
Increase in non-pledged time A B A B [ 51 R ﬁ_L & A
deposits with original maturity of more K 45 35 7 TE HR AT BOg N
than three months when acquired (32,845) (11,301)
Net cash flows used in investing activities % & EENFFAIR & R E F5E (59,000) (37,840)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ==
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg= FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHABRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FTIRITE 29(b) - 20,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER 29(b) (6,660) (830)
Principal portion of lease payments HENTO ARSI D 29(b) (47,921) (40,772)
Interest paid B2AFE (1,005) (322)
Net cash flows used in financing activites B E /EBFTABE S REFRE (55,586) (21,924)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & KRB & S EYE M~
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) B8 (30,135) 39,689
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HIIR & RIS EHEY
of year 105,610 65,680
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 9N FE 3R & B 1) 52 28 % 50
net 208 241
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXWESRBESEEY
END OF YEAR 75,683 105,610
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH B2RBESZEYES
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS by
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHE 63,819 64,499
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 8 A B R 5| 2 B
maturity of less than three months LR =E R
when acquired EEMTERER 11,864 41,111
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 88 A B R Z|Hi 5
maturity of more than three months a3E = 1 A &Y
when acquired EIEATERTR 44,146 11,301
Cash and cash equivalents as stated e PR AKAT
in the consolidated statement of ReLRRESEFEY
financial position 19 119,829 116,911
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 8 A B R 5| 2 B
maturity of more than three months B = & A /Y
when acquired EIEARE BIER (44,146) (11,301)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERESENERMINIRES R
in the consolidated statement of ReEEY
cash flows 75,683 105,610
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE2024F3A31HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower,
88 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skincare
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

NAIRAEEE R
BYEREBEBR AT A —BRRASH
SEMKIMNBRAR - ARAMEE
EEMBURBESPRTHEFRSHR
HERNE18E -

RAFEE AR REWMEBRF (FHE
[(RNEE]) T 2R FRHUBEXDTRY
REEEMFE -

EEZRB ARRNEREBRAR R
BREBRRRRIEERABRDF (—F
RRBREABESEMALHAR]) -

MEARZER
ARRBEEMBARZFFBWT

follows:
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
ANREGRERD L
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BT
EMAYL BLR LER
a1 S R A E# BE FEER
Coresmax Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") 100 - Investment holding
ABEAES 28T REER
((RBRLES])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI 100 - Investment holding
ABEAHES REZR
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong - 100  Provision of management
services
E RUEBRE
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skincare products
EWMER (FB)BRAA B 1B HEEEER
Miricor Cosmeceuticals People’s Republic HK$50,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of
(Guangzhou) Company Limited* of China (“PRC")/ skincare products
Chinese Mainland
mEARLHE 50,000,000 70 EEERMLE
(TRE]),/ R E R
Cos Max Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Provision of medical
aesthetic services
0 1T REBEXARY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3Rk MY =t
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. RRIk&EEER @
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARIZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
ENREGRER DL
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
BT
EmMAL BER LER
A8 B R A E# B FEER
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUBEXBRE
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUB2XBTRE
CM Technology Development Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of management
services
0 18T RUEEBRYE
CMIP Limited BvVI US$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
HERRLA RERAES e BEEBA
Cos Max E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skincare products
BE 1B HEEEEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100 Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
B 300,000/ 7T REBEXTRB
Surplus Power Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
el YN £ 18T RUEEBRE
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
B 18T REREETRE
Vitae Wellness Beauty (Central) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100 Provision of health and
beauty services
0 20,000 7T REREEBRY
Vitae Wellness Beauty (TST) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
9 20,0007 7T REREEBRY
XOVE HK Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of skincare products
Bk 1,000,000 % 7T HEEEEM
This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under ZHBARBEBEFREAZELAINEEE
PRC law. .

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

2.

& 5B

2.1

mELERE

It EM B HRIIRIEE B S5ED
RE ([EEGAMAR]) FrEM
ZEBHBREER (BEMB
iﬁWDWWE%%E%%W
BREER FEGHEL(F
%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁh%&%%@ﬂ
Pl HEREMBE - L FH
BRERIBRIBE LKA LGRS -
R BEBIN WEMHHRET
R (BT 2% MAAE
BHRBREREIZ T -

mERE
RREVBREREAEEHZ
20243 A1 HILFE 2 ¥ #H
KoMBARIEBRARTEEK
MEEHNEE (REEETE)
ERAEEBEL2EFERESTME
A B O] A O] SRR CHE B Bk B R E
BEBERABRENEBEEW
WEFTHENZEZE R R (AR
TAEBEIEGWHIRE T H#ETIER
EENRIRBRE N 2 B B
RIS 12 6l -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above.
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 REHEEE)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) RER%E(F)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Single Transaction
International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised

HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described

below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Group’s financial statements.

2.

TR (8)
22 BHBEERBEES2E

REBERAEENBREE R
SR T 37 8T RAG 15 5T BB B 5
o] -

EEPBREER  REBRAA
FEA75

BEGHERE 1R SHBEERKE
REBHBRE
LERIEHEH

F2RIERT
AL IEENTEE
FE8RIEE]
BAGT AL E-XGE£R
F12%5% 85T KEREEW
BEAEFIE
BAGT AL iy P
1255 (55] —SH=HA8
A

7 (5 R 10 BT 5T R AR 15 2T BB
e R = S g
mF -

@ FEBEEGEREIHRZER
ERERFBEESASK
REMMFEETEZEFR
ReMERERBMBRERA
HMER —HEE  S5TH
REMA NG ERYeYE
BRAVBHRRNERERE
RIBZ S M ISR PAIEHE
RIE - X ERTERRE R B
ER-BEAMBHREENE
BRAF2HRZIEFIELHE
AHBSREBEANAERS
AR BEE R S H3E
RSl RERBME R R
BHRRWI24AWBEERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. Upon the application of the
amendments, the Group has determined the
temporary differences arising from right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately, which have been
reflected in the reconciliation disclosed in note 25 to
the financial statements. However, they did not have
any material impact on the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the related deferred tax balances
qualified for offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes, including the disclosure of
current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes
separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation
is effective and the disclosure of known or
reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but
not yet in effect. The Group has applied the
amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did
not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model
rules, the amendments did not have any impact to
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)"

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)"*

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements’

HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was
removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 April 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on
a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier
application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at the
beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or to the cumulative amount of
translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

116 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

2.

TR (8)

2.3

B EMEERERNE BT
HREER (B)

BRI ERETRET RBEY
BHREERNE7SRETTBFHER
MELZHNFE LEREZF
RHIEHBRINKE - ZFEFTH
KERTEEWB M BHREER
ETHRHEERRELHYERRA
B RERERRDE SRR K
ANEE- - AHRFEAZEFE
Rl R HFEFANFERE R
RAHEENLBRER TE8E&
HREETBERR - ZFEF]
B AEENMBEHRRE
EEREATE -

BB G ERIE2157EFTI A -
%ﬂiﬂ%@&%‘EMEmﬂ
- EEBESGAARAS
BEE  ARAEFTERTE
He B HARE K - Z B Bk
BEM UEFEUBEBREERET
B ABREENTE  BA
h$$%°ﬁﬁzﬁth =i

BEREERER - EXERS
$$1J$mﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%%%
BXERBHERSEREEF
B HEA SRS R MmN B L o
REAWELEZEEN R ENH
B S BETeEHREE
W BRREETWNEATE -

HI@ nnl



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

TR (#)
24 FEEEEXE)

2. Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. At inception or on reassessment of a
contract that contains a lease component and non-lease
components, the Group adopts the practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components and to account for
the lease component and the associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-
use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commmencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR )
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEESIBE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cRMEE (&)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised K AT ER R EE (BF
cost (debt instruments) TA)BEENE

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEETTBE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERME(E)
General approach (Continued) — A% (48)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of
generally within three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEEEEX#E)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to be
that which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR#)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEETTBE(E)
Revenue recognition (Continued) W (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEA#W (B)
(@)  Provision of medical aesthetic services @ REHEESXAR ?I'&
Revenue from treatment services, medical BERERY BEZARSE -

consultation services, prescription and dispensing
of medical products are recognised when the
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as

Ba 73 F% e 22 AR 7% 1 W s 1 AR
BE T PR MR o

W AR R A TR B AR RS T
AR BRERER R

contract liabilities in the consolidated statement of VBRAEAZRAEENE
financial position. Customers may not exercise all of & BP g T2 R R

their contractual rights of the prepaid packages
before expiry of the service period, and such
unexercised rights are referred to as breakage. The
Group recognised an expected breakage amount
as revenue in proportion to the expected pattern of
rights exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of
the service period, the unutilised portion of the

[EmBI{TEEM A BN ERE
B A KR - Tz FRITE
BANSWBRRERER -
AREBEREPITEENITE
HIRR S A LE ) RERR TR R (8
RN EANKS - RIRES
HﬁJ:/ﬁifé CERERIZE R L

prepaid packages are fully recognised in profit or HoBHRIBRER
loss.

(b)  Sale of skincare products ) HEESEMR
Revenue from the sale of skincare products is REBEEEEmMIKER
recognised at the point in time when control of the EENEZGHIREZETERPT
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on E—HEHE(—RAXNE
delivery of the skincare products. BEDK) MR -

Other income H i A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.

MEWATIERERMNEIRIER
AAEERER KANNESES
BT R ey TR B HY 5 A IR (1
) B F R IR 2 WA SRS
RESBMEEREFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. BETBUR &)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 24 FEETTBE(E)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or
services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Costs incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if the costs are expected to be
recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

2. Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2.

TR (#)
24 FEETEEXE)
Hhix

It E MR IABITZS - B
TR ARANINEEE KK
EETEEBBTREEIREE
BomEEBMBHRARANNIAR
BUAZNEEBHE -AEHE
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BENEBEERBERBSHR
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FERBERERR S AHNE
KpE -
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BTSN EE - RBEH K
ZEEBNEERBEARERS
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W AR WK EN KB R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

The recognition of revenue from the prepaid packages involves
significant management’s judgement to determine the
appropriate amount and timing based on the Group’s
accounting policy for revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic services
Customers may not exercise all of their contractual rights of the
prepaid packages before expiry of the service period, and such
unexercised rights are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages and the expected utilisation pattern, as appropriate.
Estimates of the expected breakage amount are sensitive to
changes in circumstances and the Group’s past experience
may not be representative of the actual outcome in the future.

138  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

EABH HIH R A

mAEAEENMBRRE  BEEEAEF
EYEMERKE X BEME
BEERALHEBEHEEENRIAEE
WENHE - A RR& - ARER

AEFH T EE R R ERARARE
AHBIZENEEXNAENREE -

F

ERASBNEHERRK  KRT28EZ
EfhEH EEECERATHE - B5H
HEH M BHRRNEEBNEEARA
FEZ 3

RERMNER 2 WHEER
HEREEBEMNERNRES NEEEN
BERHE - AERAEE R % MR M
2AMW DR T HRETEE ©H
Ko ] o

EETRERER
BERARKERBRERRAEERNRE LG
AR T —HMRFEHEENBENKRE
BFHERFHEN T BMELMAF T HE
ERZEMEZARORN T X ama

BEXABRBNEAEX

BEP AT RN R EmETEER
BIEMNEENE QBN - MZERER
RNSRBEAREREN AEELS
EARKBEEFERANEEMERERR
A (AER) 8B LR E T IRHIARER
BN -  HBRHAKEREN S BN
APEIRBB(CHRE . MARBERBEEL
BATBEEARKRRKNERER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
HK$85,789,000 (2023: HK$101,075,000) and HK$83,107,000
(2023: HK$109,304,000), respectively. Further details are
disclosed in notes 13 and 14(a) to the financial statements,
respectively.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic services sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

4. Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, which is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skincare products in Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland. Information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment is
focused on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

LB D EE R
AEBEB—Er2REED I (BIIEF
MMHESZ2ERRBD M) LEERES
ERPBEAMmEEREBEXDTRE AR
HEEBEED BHRAEBMERS —E
B AT EABEESTNTHE
B s BR D B AR R R AT AW
REBFZLERREAZMOHER AR
SEERRBLLEERT At  WEE
P& BAEER o

B
@ RENBESHLRE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHETT

Hong Kong BB 450,819 431,976
Chinese Mainland R A B 43,441 31,141
Total #E 494,260 463,117

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the services provided or products delivered.

bl e B B R IR R AR R
NEMOLEFL -

2024 3R/ SRR EEER AT

141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets

2EDEBER @)
HWEER ()
(b) FEBDEE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHETT

Hong Kong BB 164,445 210,051
Chinese Mainland R A B 4,552 2,935
Total @t 168,997 212,986

The non-current asset information above is based on the

locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of the

Group has accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no

information about major customers is presented.

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net

LA RBDEENEMRIEEE
WEFL  BETEREEMTA
FAEETRIAE EE

FEEFEH

B E2024F 20233 A31H IEF
B BHRAEBME-—REAMEHEE
A R U aR I A (G BB AN SR B 4B U = Y
10% WA EENEBZEFER -

H A U R W as % 58

An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wz DT ZZDT :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers & F & # k=
Treatment services BEIRARTS 374,538 333,213
Skincare products EEEM 119,641 129,573
Medical consultation services BEZBRG 9 9
Prescription and dispensing of B 77 M B B AR 75
medical products 72 322
Total FEET 494,260 463,117
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net (Continved) 5. Yz ~ H U A R Wz F 58
(%)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFAHWE
() Disaggregated revenue information i) SDHEWHEEHR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Types of goods or services ERSREESE
Provision of medical aesthetic R EEXARY
services 374,619 333,544
Sale of skincare products HEEEEM 119,641 129,573
Total Bt 494,260 463,117
Geographical markets i i3 T 45
Hong Kong BE 450,819 431,976
Chinese Mainland B A 1l 43,441 31,141
Total @t 494,260 463,117
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 228 e 5 AR
Goods or services transferred EREIERE QRS
at a point in time 119,722 129,904
Services transferred over time i I FE] B8 2 AR 7S 374,538 333,213
Total 1T 494,260 463,117

2024 3 | SYPEREBAR DA

143
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R T

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continves) 5. U 7% ~ E U A & Uk 25 75 58
(%)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEFEHWE (&)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) i) SHFWEERE)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TEREMMBSHERNKES
recognised in the current reporting period that were HOEHESEF ARMERINEG
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the HEfE
reporting period:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Revenue recognised that was FFAREHYIEHNAEN
included in contract liabilities at BRI =
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services BRERS 138,526 100,473
Skincare products & E 3 16
Total @t 138,529 100,489
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skincare products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the skincare products and payment is mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 60 days from
delivery.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net Continuea) 5.

An analysis of other income and gain, net is as follows:

Woas « B WA R s % R
(#)
E A WA RYEFES T -

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT T

Bank interest income RITF B WA 5,323 2,354

Government subsidies* BT Bh - - 6,678
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BE X

plant and equipment, net RBEE WEFE 60 164

Others HAh 379 249

Total BEt 5,762 9,445

Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies granted by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the
anti-epidemic fund. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.

BT RS £ BT BRHHITRERFR
BRERES | TR THOHE - BRZSHD
BLEAR ] AR ER M RIS EAER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

6. Finance Costs 6. HBKA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: WA
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on bank loans SRITERH A 1,011 327
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERN A 4,144 3,333
Total HEt 5,155 3,660
7. Loss Before Tax 7. BRHERIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEBRTBAEBIENERGEA)T
(crediting): P IBBSH -
2024 2023
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FER FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT B & 2,032 2,000
Depreciation of property, mE - BERSENE
plant and equipment 13 42,437 44,449
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 14(a) 50,807 46,098
Lease payments not included in T AERAETE
the measurement of lease liabilities ZHERNK 14(0) 6,321 13,232
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEBAHST
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (TREESEHS (HFs))
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e B4 RREL 167,301 160,981
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKERETEIER
(defined contribution schemes)*™ (ERBHRETED 6,315 6,559
Total st 173,616 167,540
Foreign exchange differences, net [EHEREFE 700 256
Impairment of property, plant and equipment®  ¥1% « BiE MR ERE" 13 1,430 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets” EREEERE" 14(a) 1,170 -
Impairment of goodwill* EERE" 15 - 4,305
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B REWESRE,/ CRERE)
trade receivables, net* FRR* 17 (477) 561
Write-off of inventories* MEFE" 1,979 2,094
Included in “Other expenses, net” in profit or loss. * ST ABZE [ H MBS F5E] -
There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the o BEAREE AR E A A UG f#E5K
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. KFERE UL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8.
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

EERTETHAEMS
BREBEEBERSMAERAA ([BR
Frl) F#H EmAA - BEBRRGROE
383(1)(@) * (b) * (c) K (f) 1§ LA K2 &) (#: 52
EZFEER) EOIE2DHHE 2R
FEEERFZTHRAEBMESMT

disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Fees ik 1,212 1,212
Other emoluments: E A2 -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ JEAL RoRRL 8,956 8,672
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B /K18 K 5t 214 7%
(defined contribution scheme) (EREHFRETE)) 36 36
Subtotal INEF 8,992 8,708
Total HEt 10,204 9,920
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BILFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNMBIIIFRITEETINH
during the year were as follows: WEIT
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT T T
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David BiEs Y o A& 204 204
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo B &R AN 5 A 204 204
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELE 204 204
Total a5t 612 612

FRYECAMEMBENSTHEL
FEMTESR M (20235 : F) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2023: Nil).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8. ZEERF EZTHAEME 4
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Retirement
Salaries, benefit
bonuses and scheme Total
Fees allowances contributions remuneration
e RIKER
wE  BAREE HEDEN B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TEL FEL
2024 20245
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi BYmat - 6,000 18 6,018
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln fF=E - 2,956 18 2,974
Dr. Lam Ping Yan HREEE 600 - - 600
Total a5t 600 8,956 36 9,502
2023 20235
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Bzt - 6,000 18 6,018
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln A FREE - 2,672 18 2,690
Dr. Lam Ping Yan HREEE 600 - - 600
Total a5t 600 8,672 36 9,308
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the FR AEBBERTIMNES S NE
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining EERIE - fEAIMARER S IIA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil). NEE % 7 BB kB (2023 4F ¢
T) o
There was no arrangement under which a director or a chief FEXN HMEEERLTETHRASWNES
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B & R E AN 2 BE (2023 4F « &) o

the year (2023: Nil.
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9.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2023: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2023: three) highest paid employees who are

h¥&mES

FRAEERSHHER BHEME (2023
FMB)EF HMAFBHRN EXW
8- FRNEM=% (2023F : =) 3F
ARBEERTETRABNRS

neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as BEEMFTMEFBLOT :
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances Fd o EAL KRG 13,164 15,537
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 32 R 48 F| 51 2 £ 7%
(defined contribution scheme) (REH-FKETED) 36 54
Total Fot 13,200 15,591

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FHNFATHRENIFEERIFEETT
BABBZSHEEHABMT

Number of employees

EEAY
2024 2023
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 T £ 5,500,000 7 7T 2 3
Total st 3 3
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10. Income Tax 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000)
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25%
(2023: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

FriS i
BEBNEHRBBREBEFAREEEENGE
SRR A IE16.5% (2023 4F ¢
16.5% ) M KT IR BHE  HALEE—
M B A RIBRIN  Z AR AFERMRA
FIETHAEREE -ZNBAAH
2,000,0007% 7T (20234 : 2,000,000;%
JC) FERR B H Fl #28.25% (2023 4 ¢
8.25% ) ML EMF - t2 TR ER TG
FMBIR16.5% (2023 4F : 16.5% ) BT &
TR

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong BVE — &B

Charge for the year FRZM 2,966 5,820

Under/(over provision) in prior years BEFERETIR
(EBRR M) (2,597) 81
Deferred (note 25) RAE (P 5 25) 467 (9,267)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FABEZH (L)% 836 (3,366)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax at
the Hong Kong statutory tax rate to the tax charge/(credit) at
the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

WA RTE R R EBR B AT B R H A
MIAE % B AR BERNR R EAH
ER X (B R) BEERINT :

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T
Loss before tax FRELRIEE (11,780) (23,867)
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 1Z&BAT R E 16.5% 517
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (2023%F : 16.5%) (1,944) (3,938)
Lower tax rate under two-tiered AR RSB R GIE T EE R R
profits tax rates regime (165) (165)
Difference in tax rates for specific provinces 4 7& & 7 8k & b #4 B8 78 5 19 7 R 1)
or enacted by local authority =5 (3,323) (1,285)
Adjustments in respect of current tax LB 1 B R BN ER AR 1
of previous periods EH AR (2,597) 81
Income not subject to tax BARB WA 917) (1,368)
Expenses not deductible for tax Rl 1,031 1,358
Tax losses utilised from previous periods @ HIFE B A IEE B (207) -
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIAE R 4,541 2,084
Others Hth 4,417 (133)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BRASEERBERFERBESI L
effective tax rate (%) 836 (3,366)
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11.

12.

13.

Dividend 11. I8
The board of directors of the Company does not recommend ARREEGTERRNEZ=2024F3
the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 A31BIEFEEMARE (20234 : &) o
March 2024 (2023: Nil).
Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity — 12. " AR E@BRERT A AR
/=0 — 1=
Holders of the Company LEREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on EREABENSENRERNAG LR
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the fe 2215 B A JE(G S E E518 12,616,000 %8
Company of HK$12,616,000 (2023: HK$20,501,000), and the 7T (2023 £F : 20,501,000 7T) M F R E 3
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 400,000,000 77 3% 18 A% /9 HN A - ¥5 400,000,000 A%
(2023: 400,000,000) in issue during the year. (2023 4F : 400,000,0000%) st EEH -
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue B £ 20245 220233 AB1 HILFE -
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. REBEWEDBHITETHELBR -
Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% - WFE M&E
Leasehold Furniture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
RENELE GEREE  ERRE  IARRE  BOERB nE BKEE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TER TR TER TER TER TER
31 March 2024 2024E3831A
At 31 March 2023 and R2BEIASNER
at 1 Aprl 2023 Ro03E4B18
Oost A 101,280 8,832 94,463 7,266 854 2,431 16,720 231,846
Accumulated depreciation  Z:fHTE (56,508) (3,797) (54,916) (4,434) (580) (2,382) (8,159) (130,771)
Net carrying amount BAFE 44,111 5,035 39,547 2,832 274 49 8,561 101,075
At 1 April 2023, net of R2023E4A1R
acoumulated depreciaion BB EGTE 44,1 5,035 39,547 2,832 274 49 8,561 101,075
Additions RE 10,035 1,991 5,132 5,172 13 - 5,118 28,721
Impaiment (note 7) AEWET (728) (339) (208) (78) - - (78) (1,430
Depreciation provided during R EELE
the year (23,120) (1,779) (11,955) (2,080) (103) (16) (3,384) (42,437)
Exchange realignment 3% ] - - - (129) - - (17) (140)
At31 March 2024, netof ~ R204E3A318
accumulated depreciation BB EFTE
and impalrment R 30,964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 K] 10,860 85,789
At 31 March 2024: R4EIANE:
Cost Bk 111,312 10,823 99,335 12,888 867 2,431 241 260,127
Accumulated depreciaion  ZFFTERHE
and imparment (80,348) (5,914) (66,819) (6,565) (683) (2,398) (11,611) (174,338)
Net carrying amount FmEE 30,964 4,909 32,516 6,323 184 3 10,860 85,789
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment Continued) 13. %~ WE M&E @
Leasehold Furniture Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total
HENERE HARRE  BERE IARRE BRER e kR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn TiEn TEn Tién TR TiEn Tién TR
31 March 2023 2023%3A31H
At 1 April 2022: RAE4A1R:
Cost A 82,193 8,397 91,529 6,208 817 2,431 13,640 205,210
Accumulated depreciaion ~ Z3FHTE (30,416) (2,124) (43,210) (3,286) (497) (2,260) (6,739 (87,532)
Net carrying amount REYE 51,777 6,273 48319 2917 320 171 7,901 17,678
At 1 April 2022, net of RNELA1R
acoumulated depreciaion BB ZFHE 51,777 6273 48319 2917 30 171 7901 117678
Additions HE 19,091 438 3,976 1,092 56 - 3307 27,960
Disposals & - 4 72 - - - 0 9
Depreciation provided during R EELE
the year (26,089 (1672) (12,676) (1,169) (102 (122) (2623) (44,449)
Bxchange realignment EifE Y] - - (12) - - 22) (36)
At 31 March 2023, netof ~ R2023E3A318
acoumulated depreciaion  EAIRZETE aum 503 39547 2,832 274 49 8561 101,075
At 31 March 2023 VPREXTKII=E
Cost A 101,280 8,832 94,463 7,206 854 2,431 16,720 231,846
Acoumulated depreciaion ~ EFFHTE (66,503) (3,797) (54,916) (4,434 (580) 2,382 (8,159) (130,771)
Net carrying amount REYE 4 5,035 39,547 2832 274 49 8,561 101,075

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s management identified
certain medical aesthetic centres which continued to
underperform. The Group performed impairment assessment of
the relevant medical aesthetic centres, being the cash-
generating units to which the respective property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU Assets”)
belonged, and estimated their corresponding recoverable
amounts. Based on these estimates, impairment losses of
HK$1,430,000 and HK$1,170,000 (note 14(a)) were recognised
to write down the carrying amounts of these PP&E and ROU
Assets, respectively, to the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit of HK$2,892,000 as at 31 March 2024. The
estimates of the recoverable amounts were based on value in
use calculations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 14.0%.
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14. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
retail stores, office premises, car park spaces and warehouses
used in its operations. The leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 3 months to 6 years. There are several lease
contracts that include variable lease payments, which are
further discussed below.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

14, HHE

REBEREEA
AEERLEMBNEEXRPL T
EE -MAEMER FEEMEETA
HEAH HBLHIRNFIEAE
6F - TXHE—FrimBEeAEHE
NROETHESL -

(@) EHAREAE
ARENERELERAELSF
NEEAT

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$’000

FHER

At 1 April 2022 MR2022%4H1H 129,898
Additions NE 25,535
Depreciation charge during the year FAWEER (46,098)
Exchange realignment ME S (31)
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 720234 3 431 H K& 20234F4 A1 H 109,304
Additions NE 25,850
Depreciation charge during the year FRITEER (50,807)
Impairment (note 7) BAE (FIFE7) (1,170)
Exchange realignment (R (70)
At 31 March 2024 7202443 B 31 B 83,107
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. ME #®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEARAEBEAE)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the HEBEREBERFAZEHNT

movements during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At beginning of year RF ) 111,106 127,584
New leases NHE 24,108 24,321
Accretion of interest recognised FRHERT S
during the year 4,144 3,333
Payments during the year FRFR (52,065) (44,105)
Exchange realignment bE 5 5 2 (54) 27)
At end of year REFR 87,239 111,106
Analysed into: DT
Due within one year —FNEIH 35,731 44,467
Due in the second year E_FRE 25,387 29,520
Due in the third to fifth years, inclusive #=ZAFEH(BIEERMRE) 26,121 37,119
Total a5t 87,239 111,106
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note THE & EE B o 07 5 B 7% 2k b
35 to the financial statements. 35 EE o
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14. Leases (Continued)

14, HE #)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEARAEBEAE)
(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () RERTHRAEEEEHENSE
leases are as follows: mr
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEREFNE 4,144 3,333
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 50,807 46,098
Expense relating to short-term leases KEHEEMEERY
(included in property rentals and (FFAmERS R
related expenses) HERX) 4,330 7,453
Variable lease payments not included in -~ Fef AR EBEFE 2 JERENTK
the measurement of lease liabilities GPNES:3E )
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 1,991 5,779
Impairment of right-of-use assets FERREERE 1,170 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B R HER A% 62,442 62,663
(d) The Group leased a medical aesthetic centre and certain d AEEHE—FAEE2XZHPLK
retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms ETZEEE EFRErEgAE
that are based on certain percentage of the revenue of NREFR  EANKDBERE
the operations being undertaken therein pursuant to the A R ET R R E R R R - R PT
terms and conditions as stipulated in the lease contracts. EEBHNEE TE LFE-
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements ZEHENEREREFEELAES
for these leases. 2 o
(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(c) ) HERGRLBINYBHHRERNW

to the financial statements.

5 29(c) W FE ©
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15. Goodwill 15. 2
HK$'000
FHTT
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2022 MR2022F 4 1B 2K AR REE 4,305
Impairment during the year (note 7) FRREEEFE?) (4,305)
At 31 March 2023, at 1 April 2023 202343 A31H  H2023F4A1H
and at 31 March 2024 KR 2024% 3831 R -
At 31 March 2023, at 1 April 2023 and at R2023F3 A31H » )R2023F 4 A1H X
31 March 2024 R2024%F3A318 :
Cost (DN 4,305
Accumulated impairment R2EHRE (4,305)
Net carrying amount REEE -
Impairment testing of goodwill EERER

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to a non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit (the “CMM CGU”) for
impairment testing.

As at 31 March 2023, the recoverable amount of the CMM
CGU was determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a 36-month period. Assumptions
were used in the value in use calculation of the CMM CGU for
31 March 2023. The following described each key assumption
on which management had based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

° Revenue was estimated based on the business trend in
the industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical
average spending per client and client cover, taking into
account the number of treatment rooms in each medical
aesthetic centre, centre locations, market conditions and
economic outlook.
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15.

16.

17.

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
o Cost of inventories sold was estimated based on the rate
of increase in revenue and the expected market

conditions.

o The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 36-month period was 3% for each reporting

period.

° The discount rate used was before tax and reflected
specific risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was

16%.

As at 31 March 2023, following the refinement of the medical
practitioner team of the CMM CGU, the Group performed an
impairment assessment of goodwill. An impairment of goodwiill
of HK$4,305,000 was recognised based on the recoverable
amount of the CMM CGU as at 31 March 2023 of
HK$13,506,000. The impairment loss was included in other
expenses, net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

15. B2 (1)

AR R ERH ()
. EHEFERAERKEMER
BB TRE T -

o HEEN36ME A ARIE &R E AL
RXREREHNI% -

o  FEAZIHEEARTAITEAE
Wik EEIR & EE B AR
FREKR - -BeR=2BAMKAN
WIREE16% °

2023 3A31H  WCMMIE & E 4
BUREBLEERE  AEEHFEE
TREF G - RIECMMBE @ EA BN
MR2023F3A31HK A WE ¢ 58
13,506,000 7 7T 7% 52 i &R 18 4,305,000
BT o REBEFAGEERREME
T W 2 2% O EL 7 2 05088 o

Inventories 16. 7 &

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Skincare products HEEEm 31,862 31,174
Consumables and other supplies VB FE on So H Ath £ FE o 10,289 7,020
Total FEE 42,151 38,194

Trade Receivables E 5 IR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Trade receivables g REUMERR 13,522 18,674
Impairment BB (120) (597)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 13,402 18,077
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. B EIEERK (&)

The Group’s trading terms with its individual customers are AEEEAEBEFPORZBREER
mainly on cash and/or credit card settlement while the trading Bek/FfEAFEE MAEEGER

terms with its corporate customers are on credit. The credit
period is generally 2 to 30 days for credit card settlement from
the respective financial institutions and up to 60 days for
corporate customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

PRRZGFREERE - BZoRK
BAGHAREENEESN —RAB2E30
B MEMEEFPHNEEHRRKZ K60
B e AN S B BN B BE P R UHR ) B UK
B UEREREEERR -2RER
EEMEHNARGS AREYERHE
o RERRERT A EMERRE
ISR - BHRUERRTEE

RBERR BHERRERIREZEH
RAEMBREREEENREDNTIT -

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FET

Within 1 month 1@ AR 5,800 13,331
1 to 3 months 12318 A 5,856 4,032
Over 3 months HBiE31E A 1,746 714
Total Kb 13,402 18,077

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

I RISRFURERBRBEFNESNT

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

At beginning of year REA] 597 36
Impairment/(reversal of impairment), A,/ CRERE)

net (note 7) FEE(MEET) 477) 561

At end of year RER 120 597
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. E SRR (#)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERE BRERABBERETRE
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates S L EEBEEEE - BEXT)
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer AN EEEUEBEANZEARRES
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the HETOEMB BN B EETE - % E
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and RERSCAEMELER - EERERRR
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the HERMASNEEBREEMN - EREY
reporting date about past events, current conditions and MARRGEEMRETBANGER A HFE
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade AR —MMmE - (WE 5 FEUERFE Ef
receivables are written off if past due for more than one year BiE—a o BT LA - BT ZoE S
and are not subject to enforcement activity. TTIRENARMR o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TRETIEAELEEE 5 Uk IR 30 6F
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: HERBNEERBHER
As at 31 March 2024 R202463HA31H
Past due
gt
1to3 Over
Current months 3 months Total
B 12388 HEB3@EA @t
ECL rate EHEERRX 0.45% 0.66% 3.27% 0.89%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEME (T 7,930 3,789 1,803 13,522
ECLs (HK$000) RHEEEE
(F%ET) 36 25 59 120
As at 31 March 2023 #2023 3A31H
Past due
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
BN EA 1£3f8A  #iB3EA st
ECL rate RHEEHEX 1.00% 2.28% 36.59% 3.20%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) BEEE(TAET) 16,803 745 1,126 18,674
ECLs (HK$'000) BHEEERE
(FET) 168 17 412 597
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18. Prepayments, Deposits, Other Receivables and 18, JEN#KIE « & & -« Efh fEULER

Other Assets AR EAMEE
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
M FE FHET FAET
Prepayments TEATFR0R 7,832 7,042
Contract costs BRI (@) 5,048 2,664
Deposits e 35,162 34,070
Deposits paid for purchases EEWE  BENMEEER
of items of property, plant MEIZS
and equipment 101 2,607
Other receivables H 4 fE Y BR FR 2,687 3,090
Total Bt 50,830 49,473
Analysed into: Pakiv=1
Non-current portion ERBE D 9,559 15,460
Current portion mENE 41,271 34,013
Total et 50,830 49,473
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to FPALIESBT SR EE Y M &
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history HREENES MNERER LS
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2024 and BH o FA2024F 20283 3A31H * &
2023, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. BT AR -
Note: BMiaE -
@) Contract costs (@) BHIAE
The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a FTEHENBEFPANEENA BIHEERS
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses MENSENEBERETINIELL) BENE
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract costs R ARERE KRR IERBE LI ©
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are ZERAREBENEGHEERERAREN
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to HRM R B P R -

which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff as a EREEHR  AESHEMNERMINEER
result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group has BT RIEERARUE - FL NEER
therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of 2024 F3A31 BB BKAA KKK
HK$5,048,000 (2023: HK$2,664,000) at 31 March 2024. 5,048,0007% 7t (2023 4 : 2,664,000/8 7T) /7
Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised. MREARER SR ESHE-
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the amount of amortisation was HEC024F3ANALFE #HiE2EA
HK$16,291,000 (2023: HK$14,371,000) and no impairment loss on 16,291,000 7T, (2023 4 : 14,371,000357T)
contract costs was made. I LA KK AN RIS R BB 18 o
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19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time  19. & NI E B WA LB K

Deposits FHE BT R
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances REe RIRITEER 63,819 64,499
Time deposits EHER 118,614 114,826
Subtotal NEE 182,433 179,325
Less: Pledged time deposits, W RERRRBRITEERE
for credit card and bank facilities i 5 40 &Y 5E B 17 X (62,604) (62,414)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 119,829 116,911
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RBEHR ZEEMHNEHE 2 RRT
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi ERURTHTERAARE (TAREE])
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$17,713,000 (2023: HK$13,116,000). H1E 0 A17,713,0007% jT (2023 4F -
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, 13,116,000/ 7T) - AR TAIERL
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control BREEMEYR - Aif - REBEPE AL
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and INEBIRIGRH R AETE - BiERTEEIE
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is HE AEBEEEREREREINE
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks EBHNBRITHBARESBRREMES -

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSIETHBRTHERFEETENZ
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods )R RERENA B - EHFERIEARE
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the R eF kA IEAZ12AH
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at TEREEEL - WikE 8T BT RFE
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time BIFIB - RITEBREKTEHERITEA
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent MHmENTEEREER TR -
history of default.
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20. Trade Payables 20. EZENERR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBER BFENEFIZREZAH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ATEMRESTOT
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month 1E AR 10,278 10,544
1 to 3 months 1Z31EA 234 -
Over 3 months 838 3 1E A 49 -
Total et 10,561 10,544
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have BHREMNBERTHE  FHEEH R
an average settlement term of 30 days. A30H o
21. Other Payables and Accruals 21. HibE N EREF M EFTE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Other payables and accruals HEMEAERRRETER 29,455 20,707
Receipts in advance TR EIE 489 593
Total #Et 29,944 21,300
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have terms EA BRI ETE - FHAR1ESEA -

ranging from 1 to 3 months.

162 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R M &

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BB RELEYR S
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihg= FERT FExT
Deferred revenue R W a 51,645 37,856
Contract liabilities ERNEaE @) 131,320 144,192
Total B 182,965 182,048
Note: P&
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ AHBEHBOT -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Advances received from customers BREL B
Treatment services B IR 131,249 144,188
Sale of skincare products HEREER 71 4
Total @t 131,320 144,192

Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to render
treatment services and deliver skincare products. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2024 (2023: increase in contract liabilities) was mainly due to
the decrease (2023: increase) in advances received from customers in
relation to the treatment services. The carrying amount of contract liabilities
represented the amount of the transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied as at the end of the reporting period. The contract liabilities in
respect of the treatment services are expected to be recognised as
revenue within the service periods normally ranging from 3 months to 18
months from the date of purchase. In the opinion of the directors, the
actual outcome may be different from the amounts estimated and will be
subject to the customers’ actual utilisation pattern and prevailing laws and
regulations, taking into account of specific market conditions.

ENEABEREARREERBE RN ER
EEm B B P R 0 R 2024 F WA K
BEMD (2023F : GHMAEEN T EA
REREPFEERBE IR (20234 - 18
M- ANEENREERD LEF
EHEAE (RREBMREARETHE D RE
TINZX5EREE - ERBERRENE D
BERRERRES (RN TFEBEAH
HEFSEAZ18EA) NERR KR - ES
RAE KA RBENTRE  BRAERTEE
HipFEAR BRFEPHNEREAE
X UERITERRBEOITE
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BHIBEREW s (&)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) BT« (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: EREBENEHNT
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FET
At beginning of year REH) 144,192 116,463
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments HE—REERRER
and treatment packages, net FriSsIB#%58 327,515 341,713
Revenue recognised upon the REERRB %D ER R
provision of treatment services (340,110) (313,545)
Revenue recognised upon the sale of HE#EBEMEEBRIE
skincare products (277) (439)
At end of year RER 131,320 144,192
23. Interest-bearing bank borrowings 23. FTEIRITER
2024 2023
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERFIE (%) El): TET 2KHNE%) HE THIL
Portions of bank loans Hong Kong 2024-2025 6,660 HIBOR+2.5 2023-2024 6,660
due for repayment Interbank
within one year or Offered Rate
on demand (“HIBOR”)
— unsecured +2.5
—ERNIBFIRER ERBTRAERE 2024F-2025F BEFTRERS 2023F-2024 5
BENHD BT (TBBRIT +2.5
B - EEA E#FE])+25
Portions of bank loans HIBOR +2.5 2025 5,850 HIBOR+2.5 2024-2025 12,5610
due for repayment
after one year which
contain repayment
on demand clause
(note) — unsecured
—FRIPER BRBTEXFE 20255 BEFTRERS 2024F-2025%
(BE2REXER +2.5 +2.5
&) 0 HRIT
B (M) — miEH
Total 12,510 19,170
5t
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23.

24.

. . , > o e
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (Continued) 23. ST RRITER @)
Note: B3
The term loans of the Group containing repayable on demand clauses as at 31 MR2024F3A31H  AEEKMEEA12,510,000
March 2024 with a carrying amount of HK$12,510,000 (2023: HK$19,170,000) 77T (20234 1 19,170,000 L) IEHER (B85
have been classified in total as current liabilities. Accordingly, portions of the bank BEREERI AHEDEARBERE - At -
loans due for repayment after one year as at 31 March 2024 with a carrying M 20243 A31H  BRHE 1A 45,850,000 % 7T
amount of HK$5,850,000 (2023: HK$12,510,000) have been classified as current (2023 4F : 12,510,000/ 7T.) R —F & B HA(E R 00 4R
liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis, the loans are included within TEFIPESEARDEE R LASHTHE -
current interest-bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable EREARER BRITER - WO AR —F A
within one year or on demand. BEREENRITER
Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause and based on the maturity WREMRERERERNZERREZETHE
terms of these term loans, the Group’s bank borrowings are repayable: FE B EESR - AEBMET BRITERER AT
RIEE -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within one year —FR 6,660 6,660
In the second year FoF 5,850 6,660
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoERF(REERWSF) - 5,850
Total #Et 12,510 19,170
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong REERRITEFIGABTIINE -
dollars.
' . /, =
Provision for Reinstatement Costs 24. (BB A H e

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located
back to their original state of condition if and when the Group
vacates these leased premises.

EERABEREEEHRDRBRE
EMEREURMAEEBLZEEE
MERSEEHRRIMENEEMEER
AR KA AN EE B EREME -

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At beginning of year RE 13,368 12,205
Additional provision EEONE R 1,742 1,214
Amounts utilised during the year FAEEAMNIE (1,265) (50)
Exchange realignment i % = 1)
At end of year RER 13,845 13,368
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24. Provision for Reinstatement Costs (Continued) 24, (E1ERAEBE (&)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Analysed into: pakiiv=1
Non-current portion R D 8,800 9,749
Current portion mENE 5,045 3,619
Total et 13,845 13,368
25. Deferred Tax 25. EIEFLIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the BEEHIEEERBENFERAMEBINAT
year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEHREBEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available
of related  for offsetting
depreciation  against future Lease
allowance taxable profits liabilities Others Total
o A 8
BEMBAE  ARERH
RENRE  EANER HEEE Hitr @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TR TAT TAT TR

At 1 April 2022 20224 A1 8 2,228 6,253 - 145 8,626

Deferred tax credited to proft or loss Mz ABZE)

during the year (restated) (note 10 TEFEE 18 (W E51)) (3£ 10) 1574 8,791 433 756 11,559
At 31 March 2023 and R2023F3A31E R
at 1 Aprl 2023 (restated) R2023F4 A1 R (£ E5]) 3,802 15,044 438 901 20,185

Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRFA/ (KA BHER

to profit or loss during EERE (3 10)

the year (note 10) 2,515 (3,164) (287) (127) (1,063)
Exchange realignment 5 - = (17) = (17)
At 31 March 2024 20243 A31H 6,317 11,880 134 74 19,105
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25. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

25. IEIERIA (8)

EER RS E

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related  Right-of-use
depreciation assets Total
B AR E
T ERE EREEE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
At 1 April 2022 R2022464 A1 H 3,395 - 3,395
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss ANk B B & AEEFH A
during the year (restated) (note 10) (&=E=5) (H3E10) 1,828 464 2,292
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 202343 531 B &
(restated) R2023F 4 A1 8 (KE5) 5,223 464 5,687
Deferred tax credited FAMKRE/(GtA)B&
to profit or loss during HIEER IR
the year (note 10) (FfzE10) (278) (318) (596)
Exchange realignment MR - (17) (17)
At 31 March 2024 1202453 H31H 4,945 129 5,074
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25. Deferred Tax (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

B SETIE ()

AERE®R ETECHELEEREE
ERGATBRARES - U T A%
B 38 81 75 3R 55 B 0 T3 7T MR ST BUR A
BRI

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT

Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE RN R ERE

in the consolidated statement of BN I A R

financial position 18,426 17,643
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ? G BARRE EE

in the consolidated statement of BEERIER EFE

financial position (4,395) (8,145)
Net deferred tax assets R IB & EF R 14,031 14,498

At 31 March 2024, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$27,842,000 (2023: HK$69,227,000), subject to the
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had estimated tax losses arising in Chinese
Mainland of approximately HK$54,478,000 (2023:
HK$22,823,000), subject to the agreement by relevant tax
authorities, that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax

losses of HK$25,372,000 (2023: HK$8,762,000) due to
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

168  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2024

R2024F3A31H AEBEREBEE
5 18 E548 27,842,000 7% 7T (2023 4F ¢
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A A H) AR IR PE R B 4 ) o

REEBE IR B A E A AT R TR A 1A
#954,478,000 78 7T (2023 F : 22,823,000
BIT) AR R R ERB A
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20.

27.

Share Capital 26. P&
Shares iz 4
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 f% & &% H1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 B TH E@mA% 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE:
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & &% &
HK$0.01 each 0.01 7B T HY & i X 4,000 4,000

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available
personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, the Company’s substantial
shareholders, and any consultants, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
and service providers of the Group. The Scheme was approved
and adopted on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 10 January 2017.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this

limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

27.

R
BRAA R R ERT 8| IS BN B 5
WRMEE27 A -

BB AR At &

AR E) AT — B R st B (T3 st
B)) EAERSIRGEASBRAR ¥
A REA A2 RE IR G LR
RSB 7 SR B 5 ) A

ZETEI 2 A B2 HEEREANRES
(RIEBYERNTTES AEEEME
B ARBEERR AEBEMEA
AT EBHE 28 A8 ﬁ~fﬁ
BmoRE BPF BEENLRGHEE

@ﬂ°5xﬁ%ﬁi%2M6¢12ﬂ195%
& RERA - kR BSITRUEE SIS ET A -
ZEtES B Z B R 10FRNINARS -

RS IREZTEI B ER D 2 RITHEER
EzEEBBARNTERBASRAQAFRN
2017F1 A10H B E17RH 2 10% °

PMER1218 A HIR A - ARBEERER R
ZAT BB ABRSEERTZH&ESERN
#H  AARBREMERED ETRN

Z1% R o - TR DBBUR
B BB BRI BR K E EHLE -
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27.

28.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and shall not exceed ten years from the date of offer
of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.
The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the Scheme (2023: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 104 of

the financial statements.
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

29.

HEHTRERMTE

IR =]

Flows
(@) Major non-cash transactions (@ FEHFBREXRS
The Group entered into rental agreements in respect of its AEBERERBEHL TEE-
medical aesthetic centres, retail stores, office premises, car WMAEME -FEHRBERL
park spaces and warehouses. During the year, the Group HEWZE FR - AEEBER
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease BEEBIRSAE HHEYD
liabilities of HK$25,850,000 (2023: HK$25,535,000) and FNEERHAEEERGED AR
HK$24,108,000 (2023: HK$24,321,000), respectively, in 25,850,0007%8 7T, (2023 4F : 25,535,000
respect of lease arrangements for leased properties. 77T) & 24,108,000 7T (2023 4F :
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the rental 24,321,000 7T) - IRIEHE R Z
agreements, the Group is required to restore the leased R G - AEEAERZE
properties to the conditions as stipulated in the rental HEUMXBEZHEREABRTED
agreements. Accordingly, the Group had also accrued and M e At - REBETE 25 &
capitalised the estimated restoration cost of HK$1,742,000 BEREREEBREERETN
(2023: HK$1,214,000) when such obligations have arisen. 1E1E R 281,742,000 7T (2023 4F -
1,214,000/87T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) BMEIHELENEELD
activities
2024 2024 F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTESRTER HEaE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
At 1 April 2023 R2023F 4 A1H 19,170 111,106
Changes from financing cash flows MEReRELZH (6,660) (47,921)
Interest paid classified as DHERKEREMNEN
operating cash flows BERHLE = (4,144)
Non-cash changes: FRSEDH
New leases & - 24,108
Interest expense FMERZ - 4,144
Foreign exchange movement () = (54)
At 31 March 2024 R20249F3 A31H 12,510 87,239
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 20. IrE e RERNEF @)
Flows (Continuead)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) BRETHELENEELE (£
activities (Continued)

2023 2023 F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FEIRITER HEBE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
T T
At 1 April 2022 R2022F 4 A1H - 127,584
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREL 19,170 (40,772)
Interest paid classified as DEAKEREREN
operating cash flows BEATFE - (3,333)
Non-cash changes: FRSEDH
New leases FHEE - 24,321
Interest expense MERX - 3,333
Foreign exchange movement b H & - 27)
At 31 March 2023 7202343 A 31 B 19,170 111,106
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement FARERERNEERSRT
of cash flows is as follows: BEENT
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within operating activities LEEENA 10,465 16,565
Within financing activities BEEE A 47,921 40,772
Total #Et 58,386 57,337
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30. Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s credit
card and bank facilities granted by financial institutions are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

31.

32.

Commitments
The Group had the following contractual commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

30. EEEH
HeREEE T AEENEHERIRT
CEHEEEAEBEE LR 56

FHIFEN M B RKRMEE9 -

31, AHE

REBRBEIRE A THIE HALE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Tools and equipment TEEEZE - 65
Computer equipment BIRE 230 591
Total HEES 230 656

Related Party Transactions

(a)

In addition to the balances, arrangements and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

32. FAENR S
(a) BEBZUBRREMBH AL

B BRI

KEH

RERNE-—ZBEESTAATEKX

transactions with a related party during the year: 5 :
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i THET THETT
A related company: —ERE R A
Endorsement fee REB 0] 2,800 2,800

(0] The fee was paid for endorsement-related services provided by a
related company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The fee was charged based on mutually agreed terms
and conditions.

ZERTY AR RNRE —HEBEERA
EHN-RBERARMBHAOKE
BRARBMXN - ZBEADREMAE
195 7 B A6 R R AR A U @
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 32. BEARG (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) XEEXTEEBAENTFS

of the Group

Details of compensation of key management personnel of
the Group, including directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration, are disclosed in note 8 to the financial

AEBTEEBRABNFSFHE
(BREERTIEZTHRABHH)
R BHRRM TS WE

statements.
33. Financial Instruments by Category 33. kEEE TR T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RRERRSESRTANKRMENT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets TREE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets at amortised cost: BEENAGTENSREE
Trade receivables B 5 e ER N 13,402 18,077
Financial assets included in prepayments, sF AFBAIFE ~ &€« HiEIR
deposits, other receivables and ERLEMEENESREE
other assets 37,849 37,160
Pledged time deposits B E TR 62,604 62,414
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 119,829 116,911
Total EEt 233,684 234,562
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

Financial liabilities

33.

HEEE e T A ®)
SHEs

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEKAFTENERAE

Trade payables B SRR 10,561 10,544

Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMEN R IESER
payables and accruals NERBaE 15,897 8,662
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITRER 12,510 19,170
Lease liabilities HEAR 87,239 111,106
Total st 126,207 149,482

34. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables, the
current portion of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and other assets, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other
assets has been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In the opinion
of the directors, the fair value approximates to its carrying
amount.

34.

TR ITANAFE
EEEFERESIRSEEY  SEF
EHIER - B 5 RKIERR - 5t ATER K
e AtEYRRREMEE
BHRMNERNEREERD I D UK
AP AEAMEN RN BR ARG R
RITEFNERBENAFELERRE
BERE T2aRZFETAREHARE
5o

SHAERAEZATFEAABRSH
(BATERBERIN) EHZHTRR
ZIANSEAR - THHERER
AR AT

ARATANTIR e HibEYRR R
HBEENEREEFRBDBONHLF
BEEREARABRLUER  EERR
MRS ERN TANRITHEITIRESH
ARAGREAERL -EFRBR/AF
EEAKREERE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 B IEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. &lE kR EIE B FENRBER

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits and interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate
risk. The Group mitigates this risk by closely monitoring the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its available credit
facilities and their utilisation regularly.

At the end of the reporting period, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower, which was
considered reasonably possible by management, with all other
variables held constant, the loss before tax for the year would
have been increased/decreased by HK$31,000 (2023:
HK$48,000) as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on
bank borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group mainly transacts with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. e EREREBERBEK @
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BAEKRRFERE (&)
As at 31 March 2024 202443 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AFH
FEFE 2BEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-BB F-BBR F=RER k(473 @t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TERr TER TERT TEr TERT

Trade receivables* 2GRS - - - 13,522 13,522
Financial assets included in FABRNRE - &

prepayments, deposits, Hin s Rz R

other receivables HAh & E A

and other assets EREE

— Normal™ —FE* 37,849 - - - 37,849
Pledged time deposits EEATHEN

— Not yet past due — R 62,604 - - - 62,604
Cash and cash equivalents RekREZEY

— Not yet past due — WARAH 119,829 - - - 119,829
Total e Ey 220,282 - - 13,522 233,804
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2023

e REREIREBEZMEBR @)

EERK &)
BRRBRFELERE (&)
MR2023F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 72 HA
FEEE FHEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
—PEE “FEE =“FEE KA @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables® B 5 EARR - - - 18,674 18,674
Financial assets included in SAENRUE - &e -
prepayments, deposits, Hi U ERZR R
other receivables HiEEM
and other assets SHEE
— Normal** — FE* 37,160 - - - 37,160
Pledged time deposits EERTEHEK
— Not yet past due — AR 62,414 - - - 62,414
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY
— Not yet past due — R 116,911 - - - 116,911
Total wst 216,485 - - 18,674 235,159

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. T EtR e E IR B ERIBK @)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE (&)
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy ARASEERERTREERTNE
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. —HETRS  HWBAKER - EES
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ HRBERER HFHEITERE - NR
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had HHR BREASEE S EUERRESE
certain concentrations of credit risk as 38% (2023: 61%) and #738% (20234 : 61%) K 71% (2023 :
71% (2023: 84%) of the Group’s gross trade receivables were 84%) DRI REWAEBEREBH AR
due from the Group’s largest debtor and five largest debtors, AREBANRIE  HAAEEFETE
respectively. BEFRRR -
Liquidity risk REE S E
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and BEERESESRM  ANEEEET LR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed HEERRAAEZRENE SRR SEED
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations IKE - LAREERNSEREES I IE
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group RRERENINOTE - KREFTHE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has EEFTEBESRNABRE T COUBE
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations. ERETEMEEE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RNBER REBERDTHRTE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NENESRaEMEBERMT -

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2024 2024
On demand/
less than 1to5
1 year years Total
BRER/
PR—F —ZHF gt
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THER THER THER
Trade payables 2 IR ER 10,561 - 10,561
Financial liabilities included in SFARMERERR
other payables and accruals EHERMNSHEE 15,897 - 15,897
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note) FHESRITER (M) 12,510 - 12,510
Lease liabilities HMERRE 38,582 53,737 92,319
Total FCE 77,550 53,737 131,287
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

TR EREIEBZNMBUER (&)

REBESERE (&)

2023 2023 4F
On demand/
less than 1t0b
1 year years Total
BER/
PR—F —ZRF &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
Trade payables EC )l 10,544 - 10,544
Financial liabilities included in AT AE A FE 1 BR 5
other payables and accruals EHERAMSREE 8,662 - 8,662
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note) FRRITER () 19,170 - 19,170
Lease liabiliies HEEE 47,374 69,325 116,699
Total 5 85,750 69,325 155,075
Note: B 3E -

Included in the above interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2024 are term loans with a carrying amount of HK$12,510,000 (2023:
HK$19,170,000). The loan agreements contain a repayment on demand clause
giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will
be called in their entirety within 12 months from the end of the reporting period,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity
dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain repayment on demand
clauses, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

Ll R2024F3 A1 AMAEEF BRITERE
15 BRE {8 412,510,000 7T (2023 4F : 19,170,000
BTN THER - BRBEI A RERERER
B FIRT AR G IERIBE R ESREE B - Bt - 5t
FMEEERME  BEIBEAMNREX] -

BEE LRGN EFRAEFBTENMESNK
MEE12EANKRERZHEE  BEWERR/EK
HRBEER BRI HABEE - ZEDNEERE
AT &IREEL - REER 8RR IE R B8
B WEREHEN  RASBECRBELRME
ST B TR E MR R o

RIFESREREEGTNERET - ZFEFR
HEBROIBER RBEEQRFTENS KRG
REMZERERETOZE)NT

Within 1 year 110 5 years Total

—FR —ZRF st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

As at 31 March 2024 202443 A31H 7,256 6,018 13,274
As at 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 7,510 13,162 20,662
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BZE2024F3 A1 HIEFE

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. T EtR e E IR B ERIBK @)

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

EXER
AEBEEAEENTIZERARERE
BRELEENENITEFRIEZOERL
T UFHEEBRAERARRRE
=0

AEERBLEERAE L RBAEER
ERSEERERFABRLERNER - B
B FABRERERE  AEEERAERRK
REAATHRE - MRE AT E AR R
EETTHTAR D - MELE 2024 F 3 31 H
K20283F3A31BIEFE EARAEEMN
B BURSURIEW EEE) -
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36. A& AQ &) 7 8§k i &
Information about the statement of financial position of the RABRRERROT B AT ER D

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: I
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIKE - -
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H 4th JE UK BR X 241 193
Due from subsidiaries JE LB /B X R FRIA 65,045 66,907
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EEY 35,582 38,762
Total current assets MEEERE 100,868 105,862
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE S 35,975 41,935
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 64,893 63,927
Net assets BEFE 64,893 63,927
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) bt () 60,893 59,927
Total equity B iBE 64,893 63,927
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

36. NRARIZHBEARNE (&)

(Continued)
Note: B3
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIEEOBRENT -
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Tota
B R ER -0 | st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 R20224 4 51 H 67,788 (8,581) 59,207
Profit and total comprehensive FEEMNREENEERE
income for the year - 720 720
At 31 March 2023 and at 1 April 2023 M2023F3 431 H K
20234 A1H 67,788 (7,861) 59,927
Profit and total comprehensive FEBMNREER BT
income for the year - 966 966
At 31 March 2024 R20244F3 A31H 67,788 (6,895) 60,893
. . N =
37. Approval of the Financial Statements 37. #LEMBFEmE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2024.

MR N2024F6 A5 HKEE=E

SHE R ETE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEUBERHE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIBLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FET FHETT FHETT FHETT

RESULTS ES

Revenue Wz 494,260 463,117 363,915 128,871 176,529
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE AR (BER) (11,780) (23,867) 31,201 (16,217) 15,669
Income tax credit/(expense) FTSTi K%, (B %) (836) 3,366 (5,819) 3,564 2,113)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEmEF(E18) (12,616)  (20,501) 25,382 (12,653) 13,556

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$'000
TR FET FHET FHETT TFHETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total assets BEE 479,443 516,811 476,814 372,135 357,251
Total liabilities waE (342,680) (366,098) (305,544) (226,561)  (199,020)

Equity attributable to owners ZAN2A &1 A A 15
of the Company %%

W
B

136,763 150,713 171,270 145,574 158,231
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